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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE CF THE PHILIPPINES

1. Forthe fiscal year ended 31 DECEMBER 2024

2. SEC ldantification Number AS026-003418

3. BIR Tax |dentification No. 004.-985-286

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

5. PASIG CITY 6. | (SECUssOnly)

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code
Incorporation or crganization

7. Renaissance Towers, Meralco Ave., Pasig City (Manila Satellite Office) 1600
Barangay Balabag, New Coast, Island of Boracay, 5608

Municipality of Malay, Province of Aklan (Principal Office)

Address of principal offlce Postal Code

R A N B T O . s i b b P T
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

N, I e DRSS S I s S M L s —
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant fo Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Mumber of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Class "A-1" 232
Class "A-2" 429
Class “8-3" (including 5 Foundars' shares) 268
Class “B-1" 547
Clags "B-2" 586
Class "B-3° 286
Class "C-1" 1,302
Class "C-2" 056
Class "C-3° 384
Class D 14,899
Total 19,689

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange
Yes| | No [/]



If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therain:
12. Check whether the issuer;

{a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder or
Seclion 11 of the R3A and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sactions 26 and 141 of The Corporation

Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [f] Na[]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (30) days.
Yes [f] No[]

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, The aggregate
market value shall be computed by referance to the price at which the stock was sold, or the average bid
and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date of filing. If a
determination as to whether & particular person or entity s an affiliate cannot be made without involving
unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates
may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the circumstances, provided the
assumptions are set forth In this Form. (See definition of *affiliate” in “Annex B")

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the
Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the Commission,

Yes [/] No[]
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15. f any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify the
part of SEC Form 17-A Into which the document is incorporated:

2024 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
(incorporated as reference for ltem 7 of SEC Form 17-A)
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

1, Business Development

Fairways & Bluewster Resort Golf & Country Club Inc. (the "Club”) was incorporated on 26 March 1996
and was established for the primary purpose of promoting the social, recraational and athletic activities
on a nan-profit basis among its members, the main objective and undertaking of which Is the operation
and maintenance of a vacation, resorl, golf course and lodging facilities.

To date, the Club's generate revenue to sustain its operations and cope with its other financial
obligations, It has not filed for bankruptcy nor has it has been under receivership or any similar
proceedings. The Club has not gone thru any material merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of
significant amount of assets not in the ordinary coursa of business,

2. Business of Issuer

a. Description of Registrant

The Club Is an exclusive club organized on a non-profit basis for the benefit of its members
and guests. Ownership of a share entitles the registered owner to the use of the golf coursa,
all the sports facilities, other service amenities, and the Club's lodging facilities (except Class
D Shares), subject to the lerms and conditions prescribed in the Club's Aricles of
Incorporation, By-Laws, and to the policies, rules and regulations as may from time to time be
promulgated by the Board of Directors and/or Management.

In 1998, the Club commenced the operation of the golf course, which is now 100% complete
and already playable. The seven (7) buildings of lodging faciliies are 100% completed and
are currently being used by the members and guests. In addition to the championship golf
course, the resort features varicus recreation amenities, food & beverage outlsts, clubhouss,
swimming pools, cabanas, and lounge areas.

To finance the cperation and maintenance of the golf course and other feciities, the Club
assesses ts members with a reasonable amount of annual membership dues.

The resort-type facility and the golf course itself are the primary products thal the Club is
offering. The principal market of these products is not limited to its members. The market is
extended to other guests and foreign visitors who prefer the unique structure of Fairways &
Bluswater. Hence, the increase in the number of members who visit Boracay, along with their
family and guests, wil really contribute to the revenues of the Club.

With regard o the target markets of the Club, the following points are worth noting:

First, the Philippine golf industry is experiencing a steady increase in demand. The market
amongst the corporate executives is an escalating trend as the golf course Is fast becoming a
preferred venue for people in top management for business meetings, business negotiations
and brainstorming sessions. Golf-executives say the activity and the ambience bring oul their
creative juices and help them clear out their minds that positively influence their decision
making.

Second, the resorl industry in the country remains un-wavered despite the sporadic
lawlessness In certain reglons in the Southern part of the country.



Of special relevance, however, Is the fact that Boracay Island, where the Club is located has
set new records in terms of tourist amivals and tourism receipts generated — in 2017 alone,
Boracay welcomed 2M visitors who were respansible for generaling Php56.4 billion worth of
tourism receipts. In 2018, Boracay saw 930,363 visitors who generated Php28 billion revenue
despite the closure ordered by the President of the Republic of the Philippines. Further,
Boracay is still consisiently cited as one of the best beaches in the world. Although tourist
arrivals and tourism receipts took a dive in 2020 because of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
outlook in general, for both the golf and the resort industries is still promising. The prospect for
mare vasi market for our product is still achievable

No share of the Club has been sold since 2008, both foreign and local. Distribution methods
for the Club's shares, if ever, will continue to be coursed through securities brokers duly
licensed by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In terms of competition, the Club is the only resort in the Island of Boracay that offers an 18
hole, Par 72, championship Golf Course in a resort facility with access to private beach, Thus,
in terms of market share, the Club is highly favored by those customers who want to play goif
whiie vacationing &t the beautiful Island of Boracay.

Moreaver, it is the only golf and country club resort in the Visayas and Mindanao Regions,
where the compenents, facilities & amenities are uniguely brought together to form & true and
complete travel destination, Most of its competitors are located in the island of Luzon.

The Club can very well compete with internationally established resort golf and country clubs.
The private beach, though facing the Sibuyan Sea, is still one of the finest beaches in the
world and its spectacular world class 18-nole par 72 champlonship golf course was designed
by no less than a champion golfer as well, Mr. Graham Marsh.

The fundamental and most important compenent of the Club is its excellent and high-quality
service as the women and men behind the Club exert all effort to treat all members and guests
as Very Imporiant Persons (VIPs} making them feei the true warmth of Filipinos and giving
them the chance to experence the unique Filipino way of hospitality.

Itis for the reasons above, plus the breathtaking natural beauty of Boracay Island that makes
the Club extremely confident that it can compete with other similar country clubs — locally and
Internationally,

The Club is not dependent on any single customer. The Club relies on various revenue
streams. To name a few sources: ils membership where each member contributes to the
revenue through membership dues, eamnings from amenities and eamings from food &
beverage outlets, bangust sales, and villa operations among others. No single member
accounts for Ten Percant (10%) or more of the Club's revenue.

Related parties' transactions of the Club pertain to cash advances made by the Club from its
developer, Global-Estate Properties, Inc. ("GEPI" or formery known as Fil-Estate Propertias,
inc.), and the Club's other majerity shareholder, Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. ("GERI"), GEPI's
parent company. Moving forward, the Club is striving to make sura it Is not dependent on
loans and advances. The Club aims lo ensure thal it can financially support its continuous
operations independently. As of 31 December 2024, GEP| and GERI have made the following
advances to the Club:

GERI Php 58,162,151
GEP| 57,479,394
Total Php 115,641,545



wi,

wil.

wilf,

The Club has renewed its registered trade name and trademark with the Intellectual Property
Office on Cctober 2021, The registration is valid for five (5) years or until October 2026, The
Club has no copyrights, patents, licenses, franchise, concessions and royalty agreements on
which the Club's operations are expscted to depend on.

The Club has already complied with all of government requirements necessary for the
approval of its principal products or services even before it started its operation.

Likewise, the Club does not know of any known, existing or probable govemment laws that
will affect the Club's operation in the ordinary course of its business.

During the last three years, the Club has not spent any amount on any research and
development activities for 2 product,

Since 1996, the Club has been investing in environmental infrastructure projects, as well asin
specialized personnel, in order to comply with environmental laws and regulations.

Major projects include: 1) full compliance to clean water act, clean air act, hazardous waste
management, solid waste management act and all other laws and ordinances; 2) acquisition
of 1S0-Integrated Management certification which means acquisition of 3 major 1SO
standards: 1S09001:2015 Quality Management System, IS045001:2018 Occupational Health
& Safety Management System, 15014001;2015 Environmental Management System; 3)
construction of waste water treatment facility for collection and recycling of wastewater within
the resort, 4) purchase of and donation of garbage trucks to the local government; 5) purchase
of tractor driven beach cleaner and other special equipment 6) Implementation of
environmental management practices for golf course maintenance, natural landscaping, and
wildiife habitat enhancement, 7) the conduct of pericdic compliance audits through
multipartite monitoring teams which include the Club, Depariment of Environment & Natural
Resources (DENR), Department of Tourdsm (DOT) personnel, as well as the local residents
and B) appointment and formal training of environmenlal managing head and pollution control
officers for the Club in compliance to DENR-DAD provisions.

The Club's continuing compliance with environmental regulations and local ordinances has
resulted in joint efforis between the Club and local govemment officials and national
government units to protect the environment not just within the resort but also for the entire
island community.

On the socio-civic/socio-economic side, the local community has gained many benefits from
the environmental projects undertaken by the Club, including: 1) provision of fresh water laps
for Island residents living adjacent to the boundary of the Project; 2) construction of waste
water treatment facility for collection and recycling of wastewater within the resort; 3) eco-
educational field trips at the golf course for young students from the neighboring schools; 4)
provision of on-the-job training programs to hotel and restaurant management college
students; 5) preferential hiring on job opportunities is given to residents of Boracay Island, and
§) continued participation In meetings of the local resort association and other community
based organization to help in shaping the future of Boracay, and, 7) active participation to the
mission of the National Government to lake care of Boracay by accepting a seat in the Board
of Directors of the Compliant Association of Boracay Business — a group that was created
and is fully supported by DENR, DOT & DILG.

The Club personnel charged with the implementation of envirenmental programs include the
General Manager, Golf Club Operations Manager and Resort Manager.



xi. As of 31 December 2024, there are about Three Hundred Ten (310) employees in the club
both reguiar, project hired and daily wage employees. Details are as follows:

Finance and Administration 106
Golf Operations 108
Villa | & Transportation 96
Total | 310

The Club may increase the number of its personnel when need arises in consideration of the
demand of the members and guests, the operations of the Club, and affordability/sustainability
of manpower cost.

The current employees are receiving various benefits from the Club such as, the health benefit
program, free uniforms, rice incentives, intemal leaming & development programs, life
insurance, paid leaves, employee welfare programs and whenaver necessary, free livelihood
seminars. Not one employee of the Club is subject to any Collective Bargaining Agreement.
These employees have never been on strike nor have they threatened to stage a strike.

xll. Frequent electrical power fluctuations are considered a major risk in the business of the Club.
As such, it can cause damage to Club property and can also cause inconvaniance to the
members and guests who are staying in the villas or who are using the various facilities &
amenities. The Management has foreseen this problem and so the use of generator sets has
been employed as an alternative source of electric power, These generator units are duly
registered with DENR, which means these units pass the requirements of DENR and are
compliant to the Clean Air Acl.

DENR has issued a valid Generator's |D to the Club as proof of compliance.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Club will incur a loss from customers or counterparties that fail to discharge
their contractual obligations. The Club manages credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk the
Club is willing to accept from counterparties and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The
Club's credit risk is primanly atiributable 1o its cash and receivables.

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with high credit ratings are
accepted. For its receivables, the balances are actively monitored on an ongoing basis by taking into
account the financial position, past collection experience and other factors to avoid significant
concentrations of credit risk

Generally, the maximum credit isk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial
assels as shown on the face of the stalement of financial position.

Impaired accounts represent accounis of customer's that have nof paid after sending demand letters
and for which the Club believes thal the receivables may not be collected. The allowance is provided
based on the remaining balance of the accounts in which the Club believes may no longer be collected.

Liguidity Risk

The Club has significant exposure ta liquidity risk because of significant payables and advances from
related parties. Although these liabilities have no fixed terms and non-interest bearing, the Club's
financial assets are not sufficient to pay off its financial liabilities. The Club manages liquidity by
identifying events that would trigger liquidity problems, providing contingency plans, identifying potential
saurces of funds and monitoring compliance of liquidity risk and palicy.



ITEM 2.

The following requirements summarize the maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on the
remaining undiscounted contractual obligations as well as the analyses of the maturity profile of the
financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the contractual commitments and liquidity.

Financial assels

The maturity grouping Is based on the remaining period from the end of the reparting period to the
contractual maturity dale or, if earlier, the expected dates the assets will be realized.

Financial habilities
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period fo the
contractual maturity date.

Interest Rate Risk

The Club's interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the overall interest expense and
exposure to changes in interest rates. Changes in market interes! rates relate primarily to the Club's
interest-bearing debt obligations with floating interest rate as it can cause a change in the amount of
interast payments.

The Club follows prudent policies in managing its exposures to Interest rate fluctuations, and constantly
monitors its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates to estimate the impact of interest rate movements
on its interest expense.

Borrowings of the Club are usually fixed rates and as of December 2022, there were no outstanding
loans from the bank and other financing institutions. Thus, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Club has no significant exposure to foreign curency risk as most of its transactions are
denominated in Philippine Peso.

PROPERTIES
Land

The properties covered by the golf courses, the lodging facilities and other attendant facilities consisting
of a total area of approximately seventy-five hectares (75) hectares, more or less, have been transferrad
to the Club with all certificates of title registered in the name of the Club.

Property and Land Lease
Major equipment owned by the Club are also located therein and subjected to periodic maintenance.

The Club entered into two lease agreements involving the two (2) parcels of land where the Club's
Welcome Center is [ocated. The Welcome Center is a Club facility that serves as a rest or lounge area
for Club guests and tourists while wailing for their boat that will take them from main port in Caticlan,
Malay, Aklan to the Island of Boracay. The properties leased by the Club, with a total area of 5,815
square meters, are owned by two individuals.



Lesse for the 3,023 sq.m. propary

Under the terms and conditions of the lease agreement, the Club shall lease the 3,023 sq.m.
property for a period of six (6) years commencing on 1 December 2022 or until 30 November 2028.
In consideration for the use and occupancy of the said property, the Club agreed to pay monthly
rental of One Hundred Forty Thousand Seven Hundred Ten Pesos & 04/100 (140,710.04), net
of withholding tax and VAT, with 5% escalation rate per annum. The lease may be renewed or
extended as mulually agreed upon by both parties,

Leass for the 2,762 sq.m. propery

Under the terms and conditions of the lease agreement, the Club shall lease the 2,792 sq.m.
propery for a period of six (6) years commencing on 22 December 2022 or until 21 December
2028. In consideration for the use and cccupancy of the said property, the Club agreed to pay
monthly rental of One Hundred Twenty Nine Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Three Pesos & 22/100
{P120,453.22), net of VAT and other taxes, with 5% escalation rate per annum. The lease may be
renewed or extended as mutually agreed upan by both parties.

As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, the carrying amounts of property and equipment amount to
Php3,504,609,461 and Php3 546,815,458, respectively. Please refer to the table below.

31 December 2024

Offica J
' Kitchen  and g Maintenance
Transpartation fumiture, Villas & | Land ]
aquipmest J;f;mmw fmjures and E&mrm Buildings Golfcourse Toim
equipment
Mt ]
carrying 14,528 284 38832 14971801 | 8,239,094 1,21B,959.417 | 2247870853 3,504, 609,481
amaunt |
31 December 2023
Office
Kichen  and Maintenance
Trarspartation furmiuta, Villas k| Land &
equipment houraﬂk:ﬂgﬁm fistures and mhufmed Buildings Golfcourse Total
aup equipment
Mt
carying 14,843,228 135,512 12,808,206 | 7327918 1,247 687,240 | 2,284,013.351 3,546,815 456
amount
Golf Course and Cther Facilities

As of 31 December 2024, the following facilities are 100% completed and are fully enjoyed by the Club
members and guests: a) Lodging Facilities (Villa 2, Villa 3, Villa 8, Villa 7, Villa 7a, Villa 8, Villa 16 and
Villa 17); b) Golf Course and Facilities {18-hole golf course, Golf Clubhouse, Halfway House, Starter
Shed, Maintanance Building, Tee House, Storm Huts), Country Clubhouse, Swimming Pool, Sauna
and Massage Room; ¢) Welcome Center; and, d) Country Clubhouse Facilities such as Table Tennis,
Card Room, Function Room and Billiard Room.
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ITEM 3.

Properies the Issuer Intends to Acquire

Other than the transfer of the completed development works and the land from FEPI andlor GERI
pursuant to the Project Agreement, the Club does not intend to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise,
any property within the next 12 months.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The SEC has suspended the cerlificate of pemmit to sall shares of the Club to the public pursuant to SEC-
CFD Order no. 047, Senes of 2009,

As of 31 December 2024, the Club was made a secondary party o the cases described below, 1o wit:

1. Sullian Sy Naval vs. FEPI and Fairways & Bluewater Golf & Country Club Inc. Civil Case No.
5626CA-G.R. SP. No. 61567, entitled "FEPI, et al. vs. Hon. Marietta Homena-Valencia, et al."

This is a case for recovery of possession of a parcel of land within Fairways with an area of 1,000
8q. meters filed by Sullian Sy Naval ("Naval") against Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. (‘FEPI") and
Fairways & Bluewater Golf & Country Club, Inc. (*FBRGCCI') before the Regional Trial Court (RTC)
of Kalibo, Aklan. After trial, the RTC rendered a decision In favor of Naval, ordering FEPI and
FBRGCCI to restore Naval 1o possession of said parcel,

On 27 October 2017, the Court of Appeals-Cebu issued a Decision partially granting the appeal of
FEPIFERGCCI only with respect to the reduction of award of damages from the original Php
3,000,000.00 to Php 500,000.00.

FEPI and FBRGCI filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court to appeal the decision of the
Court of Appeals.

In a Resolution dated 15 June 2020, the Supreme Court affirmed the Decision of the Court of
Appeals. A Motion for Reconsideration was filed by FEPI and FBRGCCI for the Supreme Court to
reconsider its Resolution.

A supplemental Motion For Consideration has been filed by FEPI to FERGCCI. To date, the Motion
for Reconsideration is pending resclution with the Supreme Court.

2. Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. vs. Cho Hyoung Gee And Danny M. Tapuz (Civil Case No. 8625,

RTC-Kalibo, Branch 5)

This is a complaint filed by Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. [*FEPI") for recovery of possession of a parcel
of land in Fairways against defendants Danny Tapuz (*Tapuz") and Cha Hyoung Gee ("Chao") with
prayer for defendants to vacate the subject properly and surrender the same to FEPI, and to cease
and desis! from constructing improvements/structures or from selling, conveying or encumbering
the subject property.

Fairways and Bluewater Resort Goif and Country Club, Inc. ("FBRGCCI") thereafter substituted
FEPI in the complaint, being the registered owner of the parcel by order of the RTC last 26
Novemnber 2018,

Formal Offer Of Evidence has been filed by FEPI on 8 March 2023.

The case s still pending with the Couri of Appeals after Tapuz appealed. Prayer In complaint for
recovery possession was granled.



ITEM 4.

ITEM 5.

Aside from the above cases, the Club is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the ordinary
course of business. The management and legal counsel believe that the eventual liabilities under these
lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial statements, and thus, no
provision has been made for these contingent liabilities.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There was no matter submitted to a vote of secunty holders,

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS' MATTERS

Market Information

The Club's shares are not traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The buyers of Fairway & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club shares are expected to be typically
from the upper Income class bracket, intemational golfers, residents of the residential estate
surrounding the golf courses and local golf enthuslasts. These shares were soid thru the marketing arm
of Fil-Estate Group of Companies and most of the shares wers sold during Its offering sometime in
1996, However, due to Asian economic crisis that struck our country at that lime, sales of shares has
since slowed down. Shares are sold at a fixed price determined by the seller and offerad with various
discounts depending on the term of the sales.

The principal market of these shares is as follows:

a.

Upper Income

This segment of the population Is the primary farget of the Club because the people from this
income class have the disposable income lo purchase the resort and golf club memberships.

Local Golfers

The popular sport of golf, combined with the talcum powder white sand beach of the island of
Boracay has made the Club very attractive lo avid golfers who not only can enjoy a round of golf
in the golf course, now known as the “Jewel of the Pacific” but also spend time with their families
in the world famous Boracay Beach.

International Golfers

The Philippines’ strategic location in Asia and, its well-maintained golf courses, make it the ideal
golfing location for Asians as an allernative Lo playing golf in other Asian countries where the cost
to play golf is mueh higher.

Globally, people are getting more interested in piaying golf as well. In Asia, the emergence of
many new golf courses in the past five years Is a clear evidence of this.

The rising costs of goifing and golfing-related activities in countries like Japan, Korea and Taiwan
encourage the search for more economical but world-class destinations in other countries. In this
respect, the Philippines is an ideal golfing destination as golfing costs are relatively lower, but the
courses are of high standards & designed o accommodate international tournaments, and the golf
clubs usually offer other recreational and sports facilities for the golfer and his family/friends that
are equally spectacular as the offerings in other countries.

I



No shares were soid in year 2008 up to the present by the Developer. As such, no information is available
as to the high and low bid information for 2014, 2015 and 2016. The most recent data available to the

Developer an the pricing of the shares are shown below.

Trading of the shares in he past was sporadic. The high and low bids for each quarter (exciusive of
transfer fees) for the perdods indicated below are as follows:

CY 2005 CY 2006 CY 2007
Low | High Low | High Low | High
First Quartar
(-1 550,000.00 550,000.00 540,000,00 792,000.00 550,000.00 | 900,000.00
ja-2 11,083,500.00 1,100.000.00 B00,000.00 1,100,000.00 800,000.00 1,100,000.00
(-3~ 11,300,000.00 1,00,00000 [ 130000000 | 1,30000000 | 800,000.00 | 1,300,000.00
EH ¥30,000.00 450,000.00 450,000.00 800, 000.00 800,000.00 800.000.00
B2 [700,000.00 900,000.00 1,000,000.00 | 1,000000.00 | 200,000.00 | 1,000,000.00
B3 11,200.000.00 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 400,000.00 1,200.000.00
£ P37.50000 37 500.00 200,000,00 400,000.00 250,000.00 | 400,000.00
C2  B50,000.00 5060,000.00 440,000.00 450,000.00 275,000.00 | 275,000.00
-3  B00,000.00 B00,000.00 333,333.00 B00,000.00 600,000.00 | 500,000.0
Second Quarter
-1 [550,000.00 550,000.00 580,000,00 750,000.00 600,000.00 | B0,000.00
-2 108000000 | 1.00,000.00 | 850,000.00 900,000.00 #50,000.00 | 950,000.00
lh-a 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 1,300,000,60 950,000.00 1,250,000.00
H-1 450,000.00 450.000.00 500,000.00 700,000.00 B00,000.00 800.000.00
Ej 750,000.00 00,000.00 1.000,000.00 | 1.000,00000 | 40000000 | 60000000
1,200,000.00 | 1,200000.00 | 1,200,000.00 | 1,200,000.00 | 600,000,00 | 800,000,00
-1 237,500.00 237,500.00 250,000.00 350,000.00 300,000.00 | 375,000.00
-2 | 385,000.00 475,000.00 440,000.00 440,000.00 275,000.00 | 275.000.00
-3 G00,000.00 B0, 000.00 400,000,800 550,000.00 600,000.00 800.000.00
Third Quarter
-1 £50.000.00 &50.000.00 G00,000.00 50 000.00 650,000.00 850,000.00
-2 [ 108350000 | 1,100,000.00 | 800,000.00 1,000.00000 | 850,00000 | 900,000.00
-3 1,300,00000 | 1,300,00000 | 1,300,00000 | 130000000 | 950,000.00 | 1.200,000.00
B-1 450,000.00 450,000.00 300,000.00 380,000.00 B00.000.00 | 800,000.00
B2 | 780,000.00 £50,000.00 1,000,000.00 | 1,000,00000 | 300,000.00 [ 80000000 |
B-3 1,200,000 .00 1,200.000.00 1,200,000.00 1,200.000.00 800,000.00 1,100,000.00
C-1 237 500.00 237:500.00 zun.ngu.un 300.000.00 225.000.00 250.000.00
-2 300,000.00 450,000 00 440,000 00 450,000.00 275,000.00 275,000.00
G-3 | 600,000.00 £00,000.00 380,000.00 500,000 00 00,000.00 | 600,000.00
Fourth Quarter
A1 | 550,000.00 550,000.00 540,000.00 792,000.00 E50,000.00 | 900,000.00
A-d 1,080,000 00 1,100,000.00 800,000 00 1,100,000.00 £00,000.00 1,100,000.00
A3 | 130000000 | 130000000 | 1.300,00000 | 1,300,000.00 | 900,000.00 | 1.300,000.00
B-1 450,000.00 450,000.00 450.000.00 800,000.00 800,000.00 800,000.00
B-2 700,000.00 S00,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 200,000.00 t,mu,g_gu.m
B-3 1,200.000.00 1,200,000,00 1,200,000,00 1,200,000.00 m,am.uu 1,200,000.00
C4 23750000 237 500.00 200,000.00 400.000.00 z_ﬁu,uw.nu 400.000.00
C-2 350.000.00 mﬂ.gnnn 440 000,00 450,000,00 275,000.00 275,000.00
C-3 &00.000.00 600.000.00 333,333.00 £00,000.00 600,000.00 600,000.00




There are no shares that are subject to outstanding options or warrants to purchase or securities
convertible into common eguity of the Issuer.

2. Holders

As of 31 December 2024, there are about 19,699 issued and outstanding shares. The approximate
number of holders of each class of common stock is as follows:

Class Authorized No. of Shares Qutstanding
Mo. of Shares

A-1 232 232
A-2 429 429
A-3 268 268
B-1 547 547
B-2 506 596
B-3 286 286
C-1 1,302 1,302
C-2 556 956
C-3 384 384
D 20,920 14,639
TOTAL 25,920 19,699

The list of Top 20 Shareholders' Names on Record of the Club as of 31 December 2024 s as follows:

NO STOCKHOLDER No. Of Shares % of ownership
1 FIL-ESTATE PROPERTIES, INC. 10,023 50.88%
2  GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS INC 7,269 35.90%
a PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 294 1.49%
4 ADVENT CAPITAL & FINANCE CORP 43 0.22%
] GOLDEN REALTY CO., INC. 2 0.11%
B THELMA K. PANGANIBAN 15 0.08%
7 MINDANAD DEVELOPMENT BANK 13 0.07%
8 PHILIP T. KIMPO 12 0.06%
8 RAMON T, KIMPO, JR. 10 0.05%
10 JUAN RAMON T. KIMPC 8 0.04%
" CHINA BANKING CORPORATION B 0.04%
12 NELTEX DEVELOPMENT CO/ INC. 8 0.04%
13 AMELITAT. KIMPO 6 0.03%
14 MAKAT) SHANGRI-LA HOTEL & RESORT, INC. 6 0.03%
15 DIVINA M VILLANUEVA B 0.03%
16 ARACELIT. MARTE § 0.03%
17 GREEN SQUARE PROPERTIES CORP. 4 0.02%
18  GIBONG LEE 4 0.02%
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18 BAREBARA K. VILLANUEVA 4 0.02%
20 COLLEEN GEMEVIEVET. YAP 4 0.02%

OTHERS 1,936 9.83%
Divi s

This is not applicable to the Club.  All profit generated from the operation of the Club are used to
improve the facilities and services rendered by the Club to its members and guests.

Recent Sale of Unregistared or Exempt Securities (including recent issuance of securities constituting
an exempt transaction)

This is not applicable to the Club. There have been no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND PLAN OF OPERATIONS
Plan of Operations

In 2024, as the Club was recovenng from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the temporary
closure of Boracay Island 1o local and foreign visitors, the Club eamed a net loss of PE3.81 million or
410.17% decrease as compare to a P20.57 million net income in 2023,

Management's action plans is to maintain the Club's proactive stance towards ensuring financial
viability to sustain its current and future operations. The Club will also continue to focus on generating
revenues to continue its rehabilitation, maintenance and improvement, projects and to settle other
financial obligations. It will aiso continuously to rationalize expenditures while ensuring that the quality
of service to its members and guests is maintained at the highest level possible, and to ensure as well
that tha Club is able to live up to the intemational excellence awards (l.e. Conde Nast Johansens
Excellence Awards, World Travel Awards, among many others) that it has received for many
consecutive years,

While the Club endeavors to push for membership dues to be collected, it is not a sufficient source of
funds to cover for all of the Club's expenses, therefore, the Club will confinue to promote various
activities to boost ils income generation. The Club will also continue to offer golf games to other resorts
and island tourists to increase revenus.

Instead of increasing membership dues, the following measures will be implemented continuously to
guarantee the success of the Club:

Increase revenues in golf related activilies by developing programs, promotions and strategies to
encourage more guests and members to play in the Club's 18-hole, Graham Marsh-designed golf
course, including aggressive marketing efforts to mount various golf loumaments.

Continue all rehabilitation and improvement work programs and projects, both major and minor cnes,
and sustain a good playing condition of the golf course and its ancillary facilities, buildings and villas,
restaurants and bars, pools and other amenities within the approximately 85 hectare property.

Ensure that all accommedation villas, including the newest villa that opened just recently, are always
ready 1o take In more guests to Increase the financial perdformance of the Club.

Strengthen the sales and marketing strategies and schemes, and explore more avenues and marksat
segments that will strengthen the revenue source of the Club.
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Continue to increase the positive exposure of the Club in online media sites and networks 1o enhance
the awareness of more people about what the Club and the products that it offers.

Continue the efforts of the member relations team to push and encourage members o pay their dues
on time, and intensify collection from inactive members by apprising them of the new faciities,
amenities, and products of what the Club including the Member's Lounge and Café that is for the
exclusive use of members,

Ensure that the Club maintains its 37 ISO-IMS certification by strictly implementing the standards
related to Quality Management System, Occupalional Heaith and Safety Management System and
Environmental Management System, The Club was awarded its 1% 1SO-IMS certification in 2018 which
was valid up to Cecember 2021 subject to quarterly audits and annual surveillance by its Dubal-based
certifying body. Fairways and Bluewater is the only hotelfresorl in Boracay that has an ISO-IMS
certification to this date. In December 2021, a re-application for its 2@ certification was lodged and the
Club passed all requirsments to get the 3-year certification. The 3" re-application for certification was
done on November 2024, After a 3-day audit and conference, the Dubai-based certifying body
announced on November 29, 2024 that the Club passed its 37 ISO-IMS certification which will be valid
for another 3 years (up to December 2027) but subject for quarterly audit and annual survelllance. The
Club will work on more improvements as it prepared for the 1% annual surveillance for the 3¢
cerification.

Ensure that the Club maintains its partnership with World Wide Fund (WWF) by continuously
implementing its environmental programs thal aim lo restore, preserve and protect the gifts of nature
and the immediate community. The "Cne Hotel" program will be strengthened as well to enhance the
Club's sustainability efforts for WWF's programs and cause. The Club will maintain its commitment to
operate an internal material segregation and management facility. It will also continue to manage its
hazardous wastes, including the shipping out of used oil and hazardous waste from the island through
a professional organization based outside Boracay, Tree planting activities, war-on-site, and other
environmental preservation efforts will be implemented continuously to support the Club's commitments
to WWF

Ensure that the Club maintains its certification as a Conde Nast property as this differentiates the Club
from the many other industry players and it guarantees the Club a better market niche. There are only
three resorts out of 500+ establishments in Boracay Island that is certified by Conde Mast,

Ensure that the Club continues to get recognized by various international award giving bodies, such as
Conde Nast Excellence Awards, World Travel Awards, World Golf Awards, and Interval Intemational,
who have awarded us consistently over the years on account of product and service excellence, and
sustainability, even during the pandemic years.

The Club also manages the Welcome Center, Land and Sea Transfer, Security, Water System, Waste
Management System, and Sewage Treatment System In line with its commitment to sustainability and
to maintain its four-star status and to possibly achieve a five-star status. E-jeepneys and e-shuttles
complement our fleet of diesel-run vehicles to ensure that guests will be transported to places they want
to go to at any given time.

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Club's operations

In mid-2023, the Philippine Government officially litted the pandemic status of COVID-19. This triggered
the gradual adjustment of Fairways & Bluewater from its fimited operations to opening more villas and
facilities. On the 2nd half of the year, right after the lifing of the pandemic, Fairways became more
aggressive [n its rehabilitation and repair projects to restore the many damages that was sustained by
Its amenities and structures due to the pandemic years. In gradually shifting to a more active operations.
the heaith and safety protocols that were instituted during the pandemic years were still incorporated
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to make sure that the well-baing of its guests and employees was laken-cared of.

While the long-term effects on operations and the financial impact of the COVID-18 pandemic still linger,
the Club remains confident and optimistic that the hospitality and tourism industry will make a rapid and
sleady recovery and bring back the high-spirited and lively activities of the Club to how it used to be in
the pre-pandemic years.

Management's Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operations

2024

Results of Operations

The Club's gross revenue for the year 2024 amounted to P580.19 million, posting an increase of P10.01
milkon or 1.76% compared to P570.17 million in 2023 due to increase in revenue from food and
beverages operations. Membership dues decrease by 15.28% or P5.32 million from P34.81 million in
2023 1o P29.43 million in 2024 due fo decrease in collections from members. Food & Beverage
Revenue went up by 224.54% or P7.23 million from P3.22 million in 2023 to P10.45 million in 2024 due
to various big events like wedding and corporate conference, Golf Operations and Other Activities
posted an increase of 21,95% or P10.06 million from P45.84 million in 2023 to P55.90 million in 2024
due to rental iIncome from concessionaire,

Direct Cost increased by 24.96% or P100.46 million directly related to increase in revenue from Food
& Beverages and Golf & Other Activities. Selling Expenses increased by 7.37% or P2.81 million from
2023 due to increase in marketing activities. General & Administrative Expenses increased by 18.38%
or P16.28 millicn from PBA.54 million in 2023 to P104.83 milion in 2024 related to increase in
administrative expenses. Other Charges (net) went down by 63.93% or P6.53 million from P10.21
million in 2023 to P3.68 million in 2024 due to decrease in other charges. 2024 posted an Income Tax
Benefit of P20.33 million compared to Income Tax Expense in 2023 of P7.42 million due to decrease
in taxable income in 2024, There Is Increase in Loss on re-measurement of retirement benefits of P9.12
million or 321.89% from P2.83 million in 2023 to P11.95 million In 2024 due to decrease in discount
rate used in actuarial valuation.

The following plans are being implemented to continue generating more revenues and support the
maintenance of the Club facilities:

1. Intensify collection of membership dues and encourage members who are dormant for
more than 10 years to pay with discount,

2. Aggressive marketing of the Club's golf course to host golf tournaments;

3. Increase sales in golf related acliviies by developing programs, promotions and
strategies to encourage more guests/members to play in the golf course.

Fin

Cash decreased by 11.14% or P37.23 million from P334.07 million in 2023 to P296.84 million In 2024
due to payment to various suppliers. Trade & Other receivables increased by 35.07% or P8.29 million
from P23.63 million in 31 December 2023 to P31.92 million as of 31 December 2024 due lo increase
in recelvable from travel agency and accrual of interest earned on time deposit. Prepayments and Other
Current & Non-Current Assets increased by 12.74% or P7.37 million from P57.84 million as of 31
December 2023 compared to P65.21 million as of 31 December 2024 due to advance payment fo
suppliers, Right-of-Use Asset increased by 44.43% or P7.22 million from P16.25 million in 2023 to
P23,47 million in 2024 due to renewal of lease agreement. Deferred Tay asset increased by 33.73% or
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F25.77 million from P76.41 million in 2023 1o P102.19 million in 2024 due to recognition of tax benafit
from net loss during the year,

Trade & Other Payables increased by 6.61% or P27.43 million from P415.11 million in 2023 to P442 54
miliion in 2024 due to accrual of expenses. Contract liabilities decreased by 21.68% or P13.25 million
from P51.12 million in 2023 to P47.87 million in 2024 due to decrease in advance collection of hotel
revenue and membership dues. Lease Liabllity increase by 31.85% or P5.56 millian from P20.90 million
in 2023 to P27.58 million in 2024 due to renewal of lease contract. Retirement benefit obligation posted
an increase of 59.19% or P19.80 million brought by loss on re-measurement of benefits. Re-
measurement gain on Retirement Benefits posted a decrease of 80.53% or P11.95 million due to
decrease In discount rate used in actuarial valuation from 5.65% to 5.80%. Cumulative deficiency of
revenues over expenses increased by 14.87% or P51.86 million due to net loss incurred for the year.

Major Changes in the Year 2024 Financial Statements
[increase/Decraase of 5% or more versus Year 2023)

Results of Operations
» 15 28% Decrease in Membership Dues - due to decrease in collections from members.

e 224 54% Increase in Food & Beverage - due to various big events like wedding and corporate
conference.

» 21.85% Increase in Golf Operations & Other Activities - due to rental Income from concessionaire.

» 24 96% Increase in Direct Cost - directly related lo increase in revenues from food and beverage
and golf & other activities operations.

s 7.37% Increase in Sefling Expense — due to increase in marketing activities.
» 1530% Increase in General & Administrative Expenses - due 1o increase in administrative
BipEnses.

»  63,93% Decrease in Other Chargesinet) - due to decrease in other charges.

o 374.14% Decrease in Income Tax Benefit - due 1o taxable loss for the year.

s 321 fnor nfL ot I —gecrease in discount rate used in actuarial
valuation.

Financial Position
s 11 14% Decrease in Cash - due to various payment to suppliers.

o 35.07% Increase In Trade snd other receivables - due to increase in recelvable from travel agency
and accrual of interest eamed on time deposit,

e 1274% Increase in Prepayments and Othsr Current & Non-Current Asssts - due fo advance
payment to suppliers.

s 44.43% Increase fn Right of Use Assef - due fo renewal of lease agreement.

o 33.73% Increase in Deferred Tax Assel - due to recognition tax benefit from net loss during the
year.
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o 661% Increass in Trade & Other Payables - due to accrual of expenses.

o 21.68% Decrease in Contract Liabilities - due to decrease in advance collection of hotel revenue
and membership dues.

o 31.85% Incresse in Lease Liability - due to renewal of lsase contract
» 50.18% Increase in Relirement Benefit Obligations - due to loss on re-measurement of benefits.

o 60.53% Decrease in Re-measurement Gaindloss) on Relirement Benefits - due to decrease in
discount rate use in actuarial valuation from 6.65% to 5.90%.

o 14 87% Increase in Cumulative deficiency of revenues over expenses — due to net loss incurred
for the vear

2023

Results of Operations

The Club's gross revenue for the year 2023 amounted to P570.17 million, posting an increase of
P274.21 million or 92.65% compared to P235.96 million in 2022 due to increase in revenue from villa
operations. Food & Beverage Revenue went up by 97 72% or P23.58 million from P24.13 million in
2022 to P47.70 million in 2023 due to increase in number of guests. Villa Operations increased by
P222 86 million or 101.78% from P218.98 million in 2022 to P441.82 million in 2023 due to increase in
occupancy rate, Golf Cperations and Other Activities posted an increase of 141.89% or P26.88 million
from P18.85 million in 2022 to P45.84 million in 2023,

Direct Cost increased by 81.77% or P181.04 million directly related to increase in revenue from villa
operations. Selling Expenses increased by 156.98% or P23.31 million from 2022 due to increase in
marketing activities. General & Administrative Expenses increased by 34.38 or P22.64 million from
PE5.90 million in 2022 to PEB.54 milllon in 2023 related fo increase in occupancy of villa operations.
Other Charges (net) went up by 43.44% or P3.09 million from P7.12 million in 2022 to P10.21 million
in 2023 due to increase in revenue from villa operations from online bookings with corresponding bank
charges. 2023 posted an Income Tax Expense of P7.42 million compared to Income Tax Benefit in
2022 of P3.46 million due 1o increase in laxable income in 2023, There is Loss on re-measurement of
refirement benefits of P2.83 millicn in 2023 as compared to Gain on re-measuremeant of retirement
benefits in 2022 of P17.15 million.

The following plans are being implemented to continue generaling more revenues and support the
maintenance of the Club facilities:

4. Intensify collection of membership dues and encourage members who are dormmant for
more than 10 years to pay with discount;

Aggressive marketing of the Club's golf course to host golf tournaments;

Increase sales in golf related activities by developing programs, promctions and
strategles to encourage more guests/members to play in the golf course.

5.
6.

Financial Condition

Cash increased by 115.63% or P179.14 million from P154.93 million in 2022 to P334.07 million in 2023
due to Increase In collections from villa operations. Trade & Other receivebles increased by 21.72% or
P4.22 million from P19.42 million in 31 December 2022 to P23,63 million as of 31 December 2023 due
lo increase in receivable from travel agency, Prepayments and Other Current & Non-Current Assets
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decreased by 23.05% or P17.33 million from P75.17 million as of 31 December 2022 compared to
P57.84 million as of 31 December 2023 due to recoupment of down payments relaled lo construction
of Villa B. Right-of-Use Assat decreased by 24.11% or P5.16 million from P21.41 million in 2022 to
P16.25 million in 2023 due to depreciation. Other noncurrent asset decrease by 64,10% or P1.0 million
due to refund of construction bond.

Trade & Other Payables increase by 42.05% or P122.88 million from P292.23 million in 2022 to P415.11
million In 2023 due to accrual of billings of contractor/supglier for the construction of additional villa,
Contract liabilities increased by.95% or P3.87 million from P57.15 million in 2022 to P61.12 million in
2023 due to increase in collection of advance booking. Lease Liability decrease by 22.16% or P5.95
miliion from P26.85 million in 2022 to P20.90 million In 2023 due to amortization of lease, Retirement
benefit obligation posted an increase of 28.48% or P7 .42 million brought by remeasurement loss and
decraase in discount rate used in actuarial valuation. Re-measurement gain on Retirement Bensfits
posted a decrease of 12.55% or P2.83 million due to decrease in discount rate used in actuarial
valuation from 7.80% to 6.65%. Cumulative deficiency of revenues over expenses decreased by 6.29%
or P23.40 million due to net income incurred for the year.

Major Changes in the Year 2022 Financial Statemants
(increage/Decrease of 5% or more versus Year 2022)

Results of Operations

s 1017 i Vil ions — mainly due 1o increase in occupancy rate

o 9772%1 in Food & g - due to increase in number of guests,

» 141.89% Increase in Golf Operstions & Gther Acfivities - due to increase in number of guests
playing goff,

o [1.77% Increase in Direc! Cost - directly related to increase in villa revenues,
o 155.98% Increase in Seiling Expense — due 10 increase in marketing activities.

e 34 36% Incrasse in General & Administrative Expenses - directly related 1o increase in occupancy
of villa cperations.

o 43.44% Increase in Other Charges(nst] - related to Increase in revenue from villa operations from
online bookings with corresponding bank charges.

» 314 10% Increase in ncome Tax Expense - due to increase in taxable income for the year.

snefits — due o decrease in number of

Financial Position
115.63% Increase in Cash - due 1o increase in collection from villa operations.

21.72% Increase in Trade and other recelvables - due to increase in receivable from travel agency.

23.05% Decrease in Prepayments &
of down payments to contractor and sup;ﬂrar

- due to recoupment

o 24.11% Decreass in Right of Use Asset - due to depreciation.




o 4205% Incresse in Trade & Other Payables - due to accrual of payable to contractor and supplier.

o 6.95% Increase in Contract Liabilities - due to collection of advance hotel booking.
» 22 16% Decresse in Lease Liability - due to amortization land lease.
. 48% Increase in Retiram fit Obligations - due to loss on remeasurement of benefits,

o 12.35% Decrease in Re-measurement Gain/{Loss| an Retirement Banefits - due to decrease in
discount rate use in actuarial valuation from 7.80% to 6.65%.

® 5.29% De
for the year.

2022

Results of Operations

xpanses — due 1o net income eamed

The Club's gross revenue for the year 2022 amounted to P295.96 million, posting an increase of
F226.00 million or 323.06% compared to P89.96 million in 2021 dus to Increase in occupancy rate.
Membership dues increased by 5.67% or P1.82 million from P32.11 million in 2021 to P33.93 million in
2022 due to increase in collection from members. Food & Beverage Revenue went up by 754.05% or
P21.30 million from P2,83 million in 2021 to P24.13 milllion in 2022 due to increase in number of guests,
Villa Operations increased by P180.41 million in 2022 or 667.11% from P28.54 million in 2021 fo
P218.96 million in 2022 due to increase in occupancy rate, Golf Operations and Other Activities posted
an increase of 152.28% or P12.47 million from P6.48 million in 2021 to P18.95 million in 2022.

Direct Cost increased by 71.25% or P92.11 million directly related to Increase In villa revenues. Seliing
Expenses increased by 2,614.14% or P14,30 million from 2021 due to increase in marketing activities.
General & Administrative Expenses increased by 18.55% or P10.31 million from P55.59 million in 2021
to PB5.80 million in 2022 related to increase in occupancy of villa operations. Other Charges (net) went
up by 3,928.24% or P6.94 million from PQ.18 million in 2021 to P7,12 million in 2022 due to increase in
online villa booking with corresponding bank charges. Income Tax Benefil for the year posted a
decrease of 78.12% or P12.37 million from P15.84 million in 2021 to P3.46 million tax benefit in 2022
due to decrease in loss from operations. Gain/(Loss) on re-measurement of retirement benefits
increased by 59.96% or P8.43 million due to decrease in number of employees.

The following plans are being implemented to continue generating more revenues and support the
maintenance of the Club fecilities:

7. Intensify collection of membership dues and encourage members who are dormant for
more than 10 years to pay with discount;

Aggressive marketing of the Club's golf course to host golf tournaments;

Increase sales in golf related activitles by developing programs, promotions and
strategles to encourage more guests/members to play in the golf course.

B.
g

Financial iti

Cash increased by 166.78% or P96 85 million from P58.07 million in 2021 to P154.,93 million in 2022
due to increase in collections of villa booking. Trade & Other receivables incraased by 40.56% or P5.60
million from F13.81 million in 31 December 2021 1o P19.42 million as of 31 December 2022 due to
increase in receivable from travel agency. Prepayments and Other Current & Non-Current Assels
decreased by 25.04% or P25.11 million from P100.28 million as of 31 December 2021 compared to
P75.17 million as of 31 Dacember 2022 due to recoupment of down payments related to construction
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of Villa B. Right-of-Use Asset increased by 188.59% or P13.99 million from P7.42 million in 2021 1o
P21.41 million in 2022 due to renewal and use of Welcome Center.

Trade & Other Payables increase by 16.17% or P40.67 million from P251.56 million in 2021 to P282.23
million in 2022 due 1o accrual of expenses and other charges payable. Lease Liability increase by
131.61% or P15.28 million from P11.59 million in 2021 to P28.85 million in 2022 due to renewal of land
lease of Welcome Center, Retirement benefit obligation posted a decrease of 41 37% or P18.37 million
brought by decrease in number of employess. Re-measurement gain on Retirement Benefits posted
an increase of 316.49% or P17.15 million due to decrease in number of employees.

Major Changes in the Year 2022 Financial Statements
(Ingrease/Dacrease of 5% or more versus Year 2021)

Results of Operations
e H67%In in ' - due {0 increase in collection of membership dues.

o (67 11% increase in Villa Operations — mainly due to increase in occupancy rate

e 754.05% Increase in Food & Beverags - due 1o increase in number of guests.
= 192.28% Increass in Golf & Other Activities — due to increase in number of guests playing goff,

e 71.25% Increase in Direct Cost - directly related to Increase in revanues.

e 2814 14% Increase in Selling Expense - due to increase in online villa booking with coresponding
bank charges.

o 18.55% Incresse in General & Administrative Expenses — directly related {o increase in occupancy
of villa operations.

e 3028.24% Increase in Other Charges(net] - related to increase in bank charges from online villa
booking,

o 78.12% Decrease in Income Tax Bensfit — due to decraase in loss from operations during the
period.

» 5996% Increase in Gain (Loss) Re-measurement Benefils — due to decrease in number of
employees.

Financial Position

» 166.78% Increase in Cash - due to increase in collection from villa operations.

» 40.58% Increass in Trads and other recaivables — due fo increase In receivable from ravel agency.

o 25.44% Decraase in Prepayments and Other Current & Non-Current Assets - due to recoupment
of down payments to confractor and supplier

o 188.59% Increase in Right of Use Asset - due to renewal of land lease of Welcome Center.

e 16.17% Increase in Trade & Other Payables - due to accrual of expense and other charges.
s 131.61% Incresse in Lease Liability - due to renewal of land lease of Welcome Center
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s 4137 in Rati t igations - due o decrease in number of employees

» 316.49% [ncrease in Re-messurement Gain/{Loss) on Retirement Bensfits - due to decrease in
number of employess.

Key P dicators

The Club (which does not have any subsidiaries) identifies its key performance indicators as follows: (A) working
capital; (B) current ratio; (C) quick ratio; (D) base equity; (E) debt ratio; (F) equity ratio; and, (G) earnings /(loss)
ratio.

Total Membars' Equity
Total Liabilities and

3,267,818,512

31-December-24 3-December-23
. WORKING CAPITAL
Current Assels 393,405,405 414,678,763
Less: Current Liabilities 684,767,378 675,827,227
(281,361,873) (260,848,464
. CURRENT RATIC
Cument Assets 383,405,405 414,978,763
Current Liabilities 684,767,378 675,827,227
0.87 0.61
. QUICK RATIO
Quick Assets (Cash +
Receivables) 328,757 124 357,700,301
Current Liatilities 684,767,378 675,827 227
0.48 0.53
. BASE EQUITY RATIO

3,331,629,252

4,024,231,661 4,055,017 936
Members' Equity
.81 0.82
. DEBT RATIO
Total Lisbilities 756,412,149 723,388,745
Total Assets 4.024,231,661 4,055,017 906
0.19 018
. EQUITY RATIO

Total Members' Equity

3,267,819,612

3,331,628,252

Total Liabilities 758,412,149 723,388,745
4.32 461
. EARNINGS | (LOSS) RATIO
Mat Income | (Loss) {63,8089,740) 20,572,242
Average MNo, of shares 18,698 19,699
outstanding
(3,238.24) 1,044.33
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ITEM 7.

ITEM 8.

Others

The Club is currently constructing an additional villa in respense 1o the growing tourism industry In
Boracay. Maijority of the Club revenues were derived from its Villa operations, hence the said villa will
contribute revenue to subsidize the maintenance expense of the Club's golf course and other facilities.
The said villa is expected already completed and operational,

As of the year ended 31 December 2024, there are no material events and unceriginties known to
management thal would have an impact on the future operations such as:

a. HKnown trends, demands, commitments, events that would have an impact on the
Company;

b. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing
operations;

c. Causes for any material changes from period to period In one or more line item of the
Company’s finencial cperations.

d. Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that is material to the
Company, including any default or acceleration of an cbligation.

e. Al material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the repering period.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audited Financial Statement of the Club for the year ending 31 December 2024 is incorporated
herein.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

In compliance with SEC's circular an accreditation and reportorial requirements of external auditors of

public companies, the Club has hired the services of Diaz Murillo Dalupan & Company Certified Public
Accountants.

Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matters

Audit fees billed by Diaz Murillo Dalupan & Company Certified Public Accountants for the conduct of
an audit of the club's financial statements for the year 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Professional Fees 362,880.00 351,680.00 340,480.00
Qther Charges 11,760.00 11,760.00 11,760.00
Total 374,640.00 363,440.00 352,240.00

Other charges refer to other expenses Incurred by external auditor in the conduct of their audit such as
supplies, printing & reproduction and Iravel expenses.

For the caption Tax Fess, the Club has not required the services of the extermal auditors for services
such as tax accounfing compliance advics, planning and any other form of tax services.
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ITEM 8.

The Audit Committee has invited several accounting firm to submit proposals to be the Club's exernal
auditor. From its short list, the commitlee member appoints the would-be auditor based on integrity,
capabilities to complete audit in time, rellability and fees billed.

The Club has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with its current
extemal auditors for the same periods or any subsequent interim period.

PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

The following are the names of all Directors, who have served for the last five years up to the present,
and Executive Officers of the Club:

a. Directors
Name Age Citizenship | Position Years Served
Wilbur L. Chan 65 Filiping Chairman February 2011 fo
present
. ” s March, 1996 o
Ferdinand T. Santos 74 Filiping Prasident present
Andrew L, Tan 75 Fillpino Director February 2011 1o
prasent
; T Independent July 25 2011 to
Buenaventura B. Miranda | 60 Filipino Director Sosaat
: 78 e Indepandent April 2013 to
Catherine T, Navarro Filipino Birector present

WILBUR L. CHAN, Filipino, 65 years old, is the Chairman of the Club. He also serves as Directar for
Clubs and Hotels in Global-Estate Resort Inc. He is also a director in the following corporations: Fil-
Estate Urban Development Corp. Southwoods Ecocentrum Corporation and Uni-Asia Properties, Inc.
He has a Master's Degree in Business Management at Asian Institute of Management, a Master's
Degree in Nationai Security Administration (Silver Medalist) at National Defense College of the
Philippines and a Degree in Command & General Staff Course at Command & General Staff Caollege.

FERDI 08, age 74, Filiping, is the President of the Ciub. He also serves as a director of
Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. He is also the President of Fil-Estate Management Inc., Fil-Estate
Development Inc., Newport Hills Golf Club, Inc., St. Benedict Realty & Development Inc., Royal Jade
Memorial Inc., and Mt, Zion Memorial Inc. He graduated from Arellano University with Bachelor of Arts
degree In 1970 and took his Bachelor of Laws at San Beda College where he graduated Valedictorian
and Magna Cum Laude in 1874. He was a topnotcher in the 1874 Philippine Bar (2nd Place).

ANDREW L, TAN, age 75, Filipine, is & Director of the Club. He is also the Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Cfficer of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (‘GERI", formerly Fil-Estate Land, Inc.). Dr. Tan
serves as Chairman of the Board of Alliance Globial Group, Inc. ("AGI'), a publicly listed company, which
has interests in the food and beverage business, real estate, tourism-entertainment and gaming, quick-
service restaurant business and infrastructure development. Dr. Tan is the founder of Megaworld
Corporation ("Megaworld") and has served as its Chairman since its incorporation in 1989, He was the
President of Megaworld from its incorporation until June 24, 2024, He pioneered the live-work-play-
learn modet in real eslale development through Megaworid's integrated townshlp communities, fusling
the growth of the business process outsourcing (BPO) industry, He embarked on the development of
integrated tourism and leisure estates through GERI and is Chairman of Twin Lakes Corporation,

24



Southwoods Mall, Inc. and Oceanfront Properties, Inc. Dr. Tan is also Chairman of Megaworid's
subsidiary Empire East Land Holdings, and AGI's brandy subsidiary, Emperadar Inc., both subsidiaries
are publicly-listed companies. He is also a director of other Megaworld subsidiaries, including
Eastwood Cyber One Corporation, Megaworld Land, Inc. and Richmonde Hotel Group Intemational
Limited. Dr. Tan graduated Magna Cum Laude from the Univarsity of the East with a degree of Bachelor
of Science in Business Administration. In 2011, Dr. Tan was conferred by the University of the East the
Degree of Doctor of Humanities, honoris causa,

BUENAVENTURA MIRANDA, age 60, Filipino, is a member of the Board of Directors of the Club and
is currently & Pariner in Chavez Lauwrela & Asecche Law Offices. He graduated from University of the
Phllippines with Bachelor of Ads degree. Major in Journalism in 1985 and also took his Bachelor of
Laws in the same University where he graduated in 1950,

CATHERINE T. NAVARRQ, age 78, Filipine, is @ member of the Eoard of Directors of the Club and is
a licensed real estate broker. She graduated from the University of Sto. Tomas with a degree of
Bachelor of Science and Commerce, Major in Banking and Finance in 1369,

b Executive Officers

Name Age | Citizenship | Position Years Served
General
, ks Manager/Senior Vice | December 2018 to
Catherine D. Marcelo 50 Filiping President/Compliance | present
Officer
Lailani V. Villanueva 45 |Filpno | Chief Financial Officer ﬁﬁﬁmb'“a:* gD
; Corporate Secretary |
m:nmgnegmew Gerrudes  C. | 60 Filiping Corparate Information ﬁgﬁt ol e
Officer
) i Chief  Accounting | October 2012 to
Jennie M. Magtalas 43 Filiping Officer present

CATHERINE D. MARCELOQ, age 50, Filiping, is the General Manager & Senior Vice President of the
Club. She is handiing the same position for Fil-Estate Urban Development Corp. Ms. Marcelo,
graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Psychology. She
s currently taking her MBA at the Grand Canyon University in Phoenix, Arizana, USA, Prior to her
current position, she held the following management positions: VP-HR & Corporate Services for Glabal-
Estate Resoris, Inc., HR Division Head for Lufthansa Technik Philippines, Inc., Head for Compensation
& Benefits Systems for ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corp., and Head for Admin & HR for Thames
International Business School.

LAILANI V. VILLANUEVA, age 45, Filipino, is & Certified Public Accouniant and holds the position of
Chief Financial Officer of the Club since February 2011, She is currently the Chief Finance Officer and
Compliance Officer of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (GERI).  Prior lo jeining GERI, she was Senior
Accounting Manager for Megaworld Corporation from 2007 until 2010. In 2011, she joined GERI as
Comptroller. She is concurrently the Chief Financial Officar of Southwoods Ecocentrum Corporation,
Director of Southwoods Mall Inc., and Megaword Glebal-Estate, Inc. Ms. Villanueva graduated from
the College of immaculate Concepticn, Cabanatuan City with the degree of Bachelor of Science In
Accountancy.

MARIE EMELYN GERTRUDES C. MARTINEZ, age 80, Filipino, Is the Carporate Secretary of the Club.
She Is currently the Executive Vice President for Legal of Global-Estate Resorls, Inc. She is also the
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Corporate Secrefary of Fil-Estate Golf and Development, Inc., and Newpart Hills Golf Club, Inc. Before
jaining GERI, she was the Chief of Staff of the Office of COMELEC Commissioner Augusto C. Lagman.
She was a pariner in Ponce Enrile Reyes & Manalastas (FECABAR) Law Offices and Nisce Mamuric
Guinto Rivera & Alcantara Law Offices. She was admitted to the Bar in 1991 after obtaining her
Bachelor of Laws degree from University of the Philippines and her Bachelor of Arts major in Economics
from the same university.

JENNIE M. MAGTALAS, age 43, Filipino, is currently the Chief Accounting Officer of the Club. Ms.
Magtalas graduated Cum Laude from Araulio University, Cabanatuan City with the degree of Bachelor
of Science in Accountancy. Before joining the Corporation, she served as the Financial Supervisor for
P3opledu Inc., Accounting Lead in CloudSherpas (formerly Global Cne Soluticns, Inc.) and Accounting
Supervisor in Megaword Corporation.

No members of the Board of Directors or any of its executive and significant employees are in any way
related up to fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.

There Is no employee who is not an executive officer who is expected by the Issuer to make a significant
contribution to the business and the business is not highly dependent on the services of certain key
personnel.

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among
directors, executive officers, or persons nominated or chosen by the Issuer to become directors or
exacufive officars.

The Company has no knowledge of any of the following events that occurred during the past five (5)
years up 1o the date of this report which are material fo an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any
director or executive officer:

a. None of them has been involved in any bankruplcy petition.

b.  Nene of them has been convicted by final judgment in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a
pending criminal proceeding both domestic and foreign.

¢. None of them has been subject to any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction (domestic or foreign) permanently or temporarily, enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of business, securities, commaodities or banking
activities.

d. None of them has been found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil
action), the commission or comparable foreign body or a demestic or foreign exchange or other
organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have viclated a securities or
commaedities law or regulation.

ITEM 10, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
p 2 Directors are not compensated.
| TAnnual Salary Other Annual Benefi
' Estimates for
Name and Principal Position 2025 2024 2023 || Bonus Others
Witbur L. Chan
Chairman MIL MIL MIL NIL INIL
Ferdinand T. Santos
President MIL MIL MIL NIL NIL
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Andrew L Tan Lq
Il

Board Member NIL NIL NIL MIL

Catherine T, Navarmo
Independent Director MIL MIL NIL NIL MIL

Buenavantura Miranda
(Independent Direclor INIL NIL NIL NIL MNIL

2 The Executive Officers receive the following compensation

KEY EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

NAME YEAR | SALARY OTHER ANNUAL

BONUS | COMPENSATION | TOTAL
A 5  Most  Highly

Compensated Cfficers

Catherine D. Marcelo 2025 -
Jennie Magtalas estimate 13.82M LT1M To=
Jiddah Marie Fontanilla
Myron Ray Evasco

‘al Xavier Vinas

2025

B. Ml ofher officers ‘and | oo | 120 | 1,33 13.35M

directors as a group
unnamed

OTHER ANNUAL
NAME YEAR | SALARY | BoNuUS l COMPENSATION | TOTAL

A. 5 Most Highly
Compensated Officers

Catherine D. Marcelo
Jennie Magtalas
Jiddah Marie Fontanilla
Myron Ray Evasco

Val Xavier Vinas

2024 13.16M ) 1.63M 14.79M

B. Al other officers and | 2024
directors as a group
unnamed

11.45M i 1.26M 12.71M

OTHER ANNUAL

NANE YEAR | SALARY | nonus | COMPENSATION | TOTAL

A 5 Mast Highly
Compensated Officers
2023 11.4M
Catherine D. Marcelo 0.86M
Val Xavier Vinias |

12.26M




Lurilene Ramirez

Ferdinand Eva

Joanna Rodrigusz

E. All other officers and
directors as a group
unnamed

2023 M 0.54M

2.64M

Compensation of Directors

Standard Arrangements. There are no standard arrangements, pursuant to which directors of the
Company are compensated, or are to be compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services provided
as a director, Including any additional amounts payable for commillee padicipation or special
assignments, for the last completed fiscal year and the ensuing year

Otner Arrangements. Thera are likewise no any other arrangements, including consulting contracts,
pursuant o which any director of the Club was compensated, or is to be compensated, directly or
indirectly, during the Club's |ast completed fiscal year, and the ensuing year, for any service provided

as a director.

4, Compensation of Officers
The Club has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing officars aside from
the compensation received herein staled.

5. Warrarts and Options Outstanding:

The Club has not issued any warrants and there are no outstanding warrants or options held by the
Club's CEO, the named executive officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

ITEM 11.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

1. Secunty Ownership of Cerlain Record and Beneficial Owners as of 31 December 2024

Title
Class

of

Name & Address of
Record Owner &
Relationship with Issuer

Name of Beneficial Owner
& Relationship  with
Record Owner

Citizenship

gﬁamm
Held

Percent
of Class

| Comman

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc.
(formeriy Fil-Estate Land,
ine.)

an Flpor, Eastwood Global
Plaza, Palm Tree Avenue,
Eastwood City,
Bagumbayan, Quezon City

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc.
(formerly Fil-Estate Land,
Inc.)

9 Floor, Eastwood Global
Plaza, Palm Tree Avenue,
Eastwood City,

| Common

Global-Estate  Properies,
Inc. (formerty known as Fil-
Estate Froperties, inc.)

90 Floor, Eastwood Global
Plaza, Palm Tree Avenue,
Eastwood City,
Bagumbayan, Quezon Cily

Bagumbayan, Quazon City
Global-Estate  Properties,
Inc. (formedy known as Fil-
Estate Properties, Inc.)

8" Floor, Eastwood Global
Plaza, Palm Tree Avenue,
Eastwood City,
Bagumbayan, Quezon City

Domestic
Corporetion

7,269

36.90%

| Domestic
Corporation

10,023

50.88%
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Other than Global-Estate Resons, Inc. and Global-Estate Properties, Inc., the Club has no knowledge
of any other shareholder who has, directly or indirectly, ownership of more than 5% of any total
outstanding class of shares of the Club. Shares of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (GER!) are owned
beneficially by Megaworld Corporation, who owns GERI o the extent of 82.31% of the Issued and
outstanding capital of GERI. The person entitied to vote on the GERI shares is the Chairman and
President of Megawerld Corporation, Dr. Andrew L., Tan.

2, Security Ownership of Management (as of 31 December 2024)

Title of Class | Name, address of Record owner and | Citizenship | No. of | Percent
relationship with issuer Shares | of
Held Class
A3 — | Wilbur L. Chan Filipino 1 Less
Founder's clo 7th Floor, Renaissance Towers, than 1%
Share Meralco Avenue, Pasig City
A3 — | Ferdinand T. Santos Filipino 1 Less
Founder's oo Tth Floor, Renaissance Towers, than 1%
Shara Meralco Avenue, Pasig Clty
A3 - | Andrew L Tan Filipino 1 Less
Foundar's clo 20M Floer, Alliance Global Tower, than 1%
Share 36" Street cor. 11" Avenue, Uptown
Bonifacio, Taguig City
A3 — | Buenaventura Miranda 1 Less
Founder's clo Tth Floor, Renaissance Towers, | Filipino than 1%
Shars Meralco Avenue, Pasig City
A2 Catherine T, Navarro 1 Less
clo Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance | Filiping than 1%
Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City

3, Vaoiing Trust Holders of 5% or More
There is na person holding mare than 5% of a class under a voting trust or similar agreement.

4, Changes in Control

There has been no change in control of the Club since the beginning of its last fiscal year, Neither is
the Club aware of any arrangement which may result in a change in control thereof.

ITEM12.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The developer of the Club Is Giobal-Estate Properties, Inc. ("GEPI" or formerly known as Global-Estafe
Properties, Inc.). GEP| was incorporated on 13 February 1990, to pursue real estate project development
opportunities. It became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. ("GERI" or formerly Fil-Estate
Land, fnc.) In May of 1994 and is engaged in horizontal and verical residential as well as commercial propenty
developments. GEP! acts as owner and developer of Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club.

The operation of the Club has been supported by advances from GEP| and GERI.
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PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ITEM 13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Club has substantially complied with SEC M.C. No.2 5.2002, as well as all relevant Circulars on Corporale
Govemnance. In fact all Club personnel, be they director, officer or ordinary employee, make a daily effort to live
out the leading practices and principles on good corporate governance as embodied in the Club's Manual,

The Club has also adopted the performance seff-rating assessment and performance evaluation system
provided by the guidelines contained in SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5.

The Board has no immediate plans lo adopl new policies for corporale governance,
The Club will continue to update its directors and officers with new rules, regulations and circulars of the
Securities and Exchange Commission relating to good corporate governance practicss to continuously improve
on the governance of the Club.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
ITEM14.  EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17.C
A Exhibits

The 2024 Audited Financial Stalements is the only Exhibit incorporated by reference
in this repor.

The other exhibits as indicated in the Index to Exhibits are either not applicable to the Company or require no
answer.

B. Reports on SEC FORM 17-C

No reperts on SEC Form 17-C were filed during the last six-month period covered by this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this Report is
signed on behalf of the Issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City oQUL" T CITWN

————— (3 APRADS

WILBUR L/CHAN

Chafrman of the Board

D T SANTOS

THE&IMEA@

General Manager/SVP

Principal Financial Officer

M EMELYN GERTRUDES C. MARTINEZ

Corporate Secratary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me on this 03 APR 2325. Affiants exhibited
to me their identification as follows:

Names Valid 1Ds

WILBUR L. CHAN TIN 113-858-316

FERDINAND T. SANTOS TIN 106-807-161

CATHERINE D. MARCELD TIN 198-160-885

LAILAMNI V., VILLANUEVA 555 No. 0219851655

JENNIE M. MAGTALAS 555 No. 0221265349

MARIE EMELYN GERTRUDES C. MARTIN 555 No. 3332194868
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Page No. ? ; tty. Ricljard Leo N
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| all S, 53953
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Jennie Maatalas

From: eafs@bir.gov.ph

Sent; Monday, April 7, 2025 3:04 PM

To: JMAGTALAS@FAIRWAYSANDBLUEWATER.COM
Ce: IMAGTALAS@FAIRWAYSANDBLUEWATER.COM
Subject: Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

Hi FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.,

Valid files

EAF5004985286TCRTY 122024-02.pdf
EAFS0049852861TRTY122024.pdf
EAFS004985286AFSTY 122024.pdf
EAFS0049852860THT Y 122024 pdf
EAFS004985286 TCRTY122024-03.pdf
EAFS004985286RPTTY 122024.pdf
EAFS004985286 TCRTY122024-01.pdf

- = L] L] L] - &

Invalid file

»  <Noneg>

Transaction Code: AFS-0-44ZYY4Z203W4PVWZ4PIWTN4QWODCFEB9A
Submission Date/Time: Apr 07, 2025 03:03 PM
Company TIN: 004-985-286

Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly agree,
warrant and certify that:

» The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on the
personal knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

» The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if any,
for completion and verification purposes:

* The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when required
by the BIR in the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.
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BIR Form 1702-RT

'
1702.RT Annual Income Tax Return
o) | G P O Mt TSt O
1702-RT (1HBENCS

Taxpoyer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Hame

[ 585 288 -oan FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, |

Part IV - Computation of Tex fkh??mwﬂumnﬂgm_“" =

17 SalesFeceipsRmvanues ees 542,108,308
28 Leas Bales Raturns, Allowances and Discouwnls o
29 Mt Sales/Receipin/Ravenues!®ses (Tam 77 Lass Tem 28 5232 V08,105
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[31 Orpes Income from Cperation (fem 20 Leas dem 30} ?!HEEE?
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{33 Total Taxable Inceme (Sum of e 31 snd 37) T2 A3 908 |
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o
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Soc. FWANT) & (AHBNE] of i lax Codle) {Fram Parr ¥I

2

37 Trist Demuctions {Swm of fems 34 1o 55)
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OR fin case laxebie under Sec 2721 & 28(2)r1)

38 Optonal Slsndurd Dedusiion (40% of bem 33)

(=]

|!I Kol Taxabo IncomaliLoss) (I Remized: iem 31 Less fem 37 If OS50 e 57 Less Hwm 38 |

{88.048,067)

|40 Appiicable Income Tax Rate 11 5% |
41 Incama Tax Dus caher (ham Minimer: Corporate ncome Tax (MCIT) (fem 39 x flem 40f [
A2 NCTT Due (3% of Mam 35 - 1,456,658
43 Tax Due (Normal Mcome Tar Due in M 21 O the MCIT Die in ifam &2, whichever 15 higher) 1 A5E.5
(T Part [T lvem 14) LR
[Less: Tax Credits/Paymens {atach prool)

i Prio Yesr's Excess Credits Other Than MOIT 2255 608
45 incomn Tax Paymant undar MCIT from Previcus Quaneds o
46 incoma Tax Pryment undar Fegularionmssl Rate from Previous Quanions | 5 = o
4T Excess MCIT Applied thin Curent Taxable Year (From fart Wi Scheduie IV ftern 4) S g
B Crediteble Tex Wihteld from Prevous Quadens per BIR Fanm Ka. 2307 P — 2358 276
|49 Credintie Tax Witnhald per BIR Form ha, Z307 for tie dih Duarter [ #0813
|50 Frraign Tax Credns, # appicabie ol
|51 Tax Pain in Festuim Previsusly Filed, i this (s an Amanded Ratim o]
|62 Special Tax Coecits (7o Fart V ftem 55) )|
IEII'IH Credils/Paymenis (Specily)

|2 i o
5 o
&

{8 Total Tax CrodisPaymants (Sum of [tems 44 ta 54) (To Part It ltem 15) 5,511,685
ISI Nal Tnx Payabie / (Cverpayment) fiem 43 Less fem 55 ) (To Pert I ltem 14) {4,065,00T] | |
| Part V - Tas Relaf Availment

|!r Spncial Aiowsnle llemized Deduclions (e 35 of Par ¥ 2 Asgicable facome Tax Haie) = —— a
I58 At Specint Tax Crwdils {Fram Pare IV Jran 52) 0!
59 7ot Tax Retiat Avaliment (Sum of iems 57 ana 5] 0

hitpe felps bir.gov. phiefps-war/EFPSWeb_war/forms2018Version!1702RT/1 T0ZRTvZ018_print.xhtml
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444125, 7:03 AM BIR Form 1702-RT

{
BIF Form N
17&;&} Annual Income Tax Return
= tion, Parinership and Other Mon-ingdivigual T Only to
Jml.nrg,‘l’mﬂ:'.[EN'EE:l AIPOTtian, Farny PREH o Norinvid.e Taspapue Subject Only

17032-AT 01/1BENCS P3

Taxpayur identification Number [TIN) Reglstered Name -
004 - 388 - 205 =000 FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB. |

Schedule | - Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Altach sduftional sheat's, if neces:

| Amanizarara o
2 Bad Dabils o
3 Chamaois Contributians ol
& Deplatian o]
5 Degreciaton 3.081.8151
@ Enledaimment, Amusement and Recreabon _ LIB19E
T Fringe Banalils o
8 iterast 0
B Losses o
10 Pension Trusi )
11 Ranis | 2 B, 594,928
12 Aeseangn and Developenen o}
13 Saindhes. Wages and Alowsnces 80,357 722
14 555, G&I5. Friinesiin, HOMF and Otar Coninbusions o 271808
15 Taxes and Licensss 1,103,505|
18 Trarmooriaton ond Travel  1A80.077)

1T Cithers (Daductions Subject jo Withholding Tax ano Othey Expansus) [Specty below; Acd additional
[steeifs), i necugsary]

o Jonktprial and Messengonial Services 194,927 |
[b Protessiaral Feas 3.650.272|
c Securkty Sarvioes 1,657 850/
d GAS AND OIL 6745922
o SURPLIES 14,585,864 |
F REPARS AND MAN TENANCE | 101,044 |
|g LIGHT AKD WATER 653,863
h ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONS 40,785,160
| OTHERS | 25,643,573
7]
1.1 | COMMUMICATION i - 324,908
12 | LAUNDRY S : = B8
I.3 | FEES AND DUES i = 2,168,282
L4 | FREIGHT AND DELIVERY It 2,804 802
15 | MISCELLANEDUS —— 6,336,240
1.6 | BANK AND CREDIT CARD GHARGES ] 13,162,318
17 | RETIREMENT EXPENSE | = 763,165
|12 Total Drdinary Aowatis ltemized Deductions (Sum of flems 1 o 177 {To Part IV ftem 34) | = 158,678,976 | |
[ Schedule Il - Special Allowabls Rtemized Deductions [Attsch adaibonal sheet’s, # necessary) |
Ecjplm === Legal Basls = _—A:n:‘nl—
1 | a}
Iz | 0|
3 | ol
i ]

S Total Bpecial Allowable lemized Deductions [Sum of Yems 1 fo 4] {To Part IV iTem 35)

httpe:tlelps bir.gov.phiefps-warlEFPEWeb_warllorms201BVersion/1 TOZRT/17T02RTv2018_print.xhtmi



A28, 7.02 AM BIR Form 1702-RT

BIF Fari he
1702-RT Annual Income Tax Return Imml |||
Corporation, Parinership and Diher Non-Individual Taxpaysr Subject Only 1o
“"’i:glﬂf"ﬁ:' HEGULAR Income Tax Rate | ot 1702-RT 0111 HENGS Pe
Taxpayer identification Number (TIN] Reglstered Name
024 |88 Habe |-o0g | | FARWA¥S & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY GLUB, | |
Scheduie iil - Computation of Nel Opersting Loss Carry Over (NOLGO) 1
1 Grass Incoma (From Aar IV frem 33) 72,832,008
2 Less: Qudinary Allpwabie |iamized Detuctions [From Fam o Schachus | Ben 18 158 BFB.O7E
3 Mel Operabing Loss{item 1 Less ltem 2 (To Schedule 1114, Jeam 7A) 188,046 067)

IS:h-:JuI- A - Computation of Avallable Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (D0 NOT enter Centavos, 45 Centaves o Lasa g
oF miong rml"{f

Ml abng Loss

e g e — B} NOLCO Agpied Previous Year

4 202 6,048,087 | | o]
5 2022 4,054,405 | Bl
|6 2021 BT 431,041 0
£ g [

Sontinuatian of Lchedue A {item numbsers coninee irom abls s

. ¥ E | Mel Dparaing Loss (Unappiied
£} NOLCO Expired | HOLCO Appled Curnerd Yeas e pening b )
a B5.048.067
Is 0 4,054,488
fo [ i & =y §7.431.141|
Ir a [ S=—1g]
8 Total NOLCO {Sum of fems 40 o 7D {To Part TV, 0
wm T4}
|5chedule IV - Computation of Minlmum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) |
I Year A Mol Income Tax as adjused l 8 MCIT C) Excans MCIT ﬁ“"’“" Irvoare |
1 202 ol 762,514 ~ TE2AM
22023 ] 2,502,388 | 2,502 338
3 I ]l [] 0 )

Comnunton al Schedule IV (Hem rumbes contnue i ek above)

Dj Excass MGIT AppliaciUsed in F] Excess MCIT Applied this | ) Baiance of Excess MOIT Allowati

Previous Years B POt o W NG Current Taxabde Year . T‘Fé:'g_'é_::&??g }\iw'
[ 0| ol __pl 782 E14|
Y o 1 [ [ 2,602,308
1 o {l o) al s 0|
Totwl Excuss MCIT Applied (fum of tems 1F e 37 | Fo Part 1V tem 470 = U:
| Schedule ¥ - Recanciliation of Nut Incoma per Books Agsinsi Taxabie ir {attach additional sheels, if necessary) ]
1 Nal IneomedLoEe) per booie —— — | —-—_Fm
Adit: Won-deductitie Exparses/Taxsbls Other [ncoms
2 DEFERRED REVENLUE - ADDITIONS a4 BHT Bha |
3|0THERS 45,875,230 |
@
3.1 || EXPENEE ALLDCATED TO TAX EXEMPT INCOME i = 32,138 366
3.2| KON DEDUCTHSLE DEPRECIATION EXPENSE [ROU) = 7402870
33| RETIREMENT EXPENSE 4 533,000
34| ‘KON DEDUCTELE INTEREST EXFENSE | o 1,730,956
4 Total fSum of Meme 1 fa 1) I 18,768,473/
Lass; Aj Mor-Tasabils Income and Income Subjacted 1o Fiaal Tax
[s inmer INTEREET NCOME 11,220,147
B NON TAXASLE MEMBERSHIP DUES - 28493120
&
= —_—  — = —
B) Snecal Desuclions !
T RETHEMENTE BEMEFITS PAID 163,165/
BIOTHERS B3, 338 046]
&
5.1 PREVIOUS YEAR DEFERRED REVENUE AEALIZED IN 2024 li 53,572,578
8.2| RENTAL PAYMENT FOR LONG TERM LEASES IN 2024 | & 9,765,867 |
0 Tols| (Sum of loms & 1o B 104,514,540 |
10 Ned Tuusbis Incormel{Loss) (Bem & Less llem &) {85,045,05T)

hitps:ifefps.bir.gov.phiafpe-war/EFPSWeb_warforms2018Version/ 1T0ZRT/1 TOZRTvZ018_print.xhimi 44



BIR Form No. 1702RTv3018 -

Page 1 of 1

# = Republic of the Philippines
. (¢¥m) Department of Finance
FoeBIR  BC ;
Lice Cinly e w4 Bureau of Internal Revenue

[
BIR Form Na. Annual Income Tax Return
1702-RT Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-individual
| H1BIENCS Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate I
| Jonuary J1BIENCS) | giter ai squired informetion in CAPITAL LE TTERS. Mack agplcablo baned with an X" el
age Two capies MUST be filled with th BiR snd ane held By ive faxgayers. 1702-AT Q1/18ENCE P1
1For (& Caiendar ) Flscal 3 amented Raium? 4 Snen Pariod Selum 5§ aiphanumerc Tex Coos |4TC) |
2 Year Ended (MM/20YY) 1 Yes @ No ) Yes @ No I 055-Minimum Cerporate Income Tax
[7F Docermer 201 24 (MCIT)
TIORPORATION N GE T,

o

Part ﬁauhamund Information

B Registarad Name [Enter oaly 1 lmiler per box using CARTAL LETTERS)

& Tax Identification Number {TiN) [ 004 -| 885 -| 2BB -| ooooo 7 RDO Code

[FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

|
9 Registared Address (s ; i ina

= d sodreas i dFeenl Fam ihe comen sdtress. g9 1o the DD Ne wid e e sddress by caing BIR Fean No. 1008

ETH FLODR RENAISSANCE TOWER MERALCD AVE. ORTIGAS PASIG CITY

—

84 ZIP Code (1834

10 Date of Incorparation/Organization F
o il [ 03/26/1288

11 Contact Number [B7085868

12 Email Address JMAGTALAS@F AIRWAY SANDBLUEWATER COM

13 Method of Deductions (8} iemized Decuctions [Saclion 34 (A-J), NIRC) 3401, MIRC &8 amended]

~ Dptions Btendan Deduction (OG0 - 40% of Gioss incoma [Seckion

Fart Il - Total Tax Payable (Do NOT entar Caniavol, 48 Cenfewos or Lass dog down, 50 af

mioe e L
14 Tax Due [ 1,456,658 |
15 Lass: Tolal Tax Credits/Paymenis [_ 5,511,805
16 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) ren 14 Less ke 15) | - _:4_El5503ﬁ
Add: Penalties === “|
17 Surcharge [ ~ 0
18 Intares! | S a ||
18 Compromise | 0
20 Total Penalties (Sumar dems 17 19 15/ I ) 5
21 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpayment) (Suwn of ilems 18 and 20 [ - ?ﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ&?):
If D-.lgrpaymam, mark -:me:_ﬂ b |::|I1I1.r {Once the ::hm.:e is made, the same (s irmevocablis] : R e === _n||
S Tobarefunded () Tobejssued s TBI!_CTEﬁIt Certficate (TCC) {& To be carried over as a tax credit for next yeariquarter _.._._.!

velugl, and all (s aflackments. hive Been mede o geed lzdn verifind by us
atmanoed, abd e regelations isausd e nuthorly inereol [V sgred By an

@nd nalal, am (et and comect. pursuant I
v, iacieais TiN and Bach MeENOATdND: fnar] .‘

" T. SANTOS [MS. LA '_"fz'ﬁu'mmF'!:J
ID - P‘l - of
S. LAI LA Attachmants I
e UPrineipal Clenriiumnnzed Bepralanative Sigrtalure uves Pemed Hame of TremsemvAssatant Trassurs “ ooo l
Tiie ot Signatory [PRESICENT T [I0BEDT 161 T of Signatary [T REASURER i [22 1096849 |
Part |l - Details of Payment |
Particulars nrm?;m Number Date{MMDOYYYY) Amount ll
23 Cash/Bank Debit Mema | Voo I [ 0 l
24 Chaeck = | ==l 0|
25 Tax Debit Memo T e (Se— [ 0
268 OthersSoecty Below) ;
P | . | | [ 0|
Maching Validation/Revenue Official Recelpt Details [if not e with &n Stamp of Receving Office/AAB and Date of Receipl {RO's

Authonzed Agent Bank{AAB)] Signature/Bank Teller's Inilial)




BIR Form Na. 1702RTv2018

Page | of |

Bﬂjfiﬂzﬁ_a_lt*ﬂ Annual Income Tax Return

Corporation, Partnership and Gther Non-Individual
amiary 2MEENCA) Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate

vl

Page 2
1T02-RT 0MEENCS P
Taxpayer Identification Number{TIN) Registered Name
004 | 985 | 286 [00DDO  FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Part IV - Computation of Tax e ”"”‘""‘C"”"J‘,.;f,‘?.fﬂﬁ” i
27 Sales/Revenues/Receipla/Fees | 542 108,305,
28 | ess:Sales Reums, Allowances and Discounis [eume== e = _u_
29 Met SalesiRevenues/Receipts/Fees (em 27 Less tam 28 [ : 542_15&355
30 Less; Cost of Sales/Servicas | = = 469.2%5._3_95
31 Gross Income from Operation mem 28 ks dem 50 | —— %2535&59—
32 Add: Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Final tax [ e 0
33 Total Taxabie Income (S of fems 37 and 32 ! ; ?2:532.9«0-9
Legs: Deductions Aliowakle under Existing Law =
34 Ordinary Allowatie lemized Deductions | 158.678,976
5 Special Allowable ltemized Deductions | — 0
36 NOLGO (Onty for thoas iaracks urder Sec 2T 1o C), Sec. 28041 1)|ANE)B) of Tar cooe, as amendec) | - ﬂ
37 Total Deduclions (Sume of Hems 34 & 35 | 1 EE.ET;J.WE
OR [in case taxable under Sec 27(A) & 28(A)(1)] LN,
38 Opticnal Standard Deduction (OSD) (+6% of nem 33 | 7]
39 Mot Taxable incomed[Loss) i demized: e 33 Cess fom 37, £ Q80 fiem 53 Lasy dem I8 | = EEB:ETM;}_
40 Applicable income Tax Rate | ——
41 Incame Tax Due othar then Mininum Corporate Income Tax{MCIT) firem 38 5 e 40) |_ : == _E
42 MCIT Dus j2% of tism 33) | 1,458 658
43 Tax DUe (Mommal Aicome Tax Duein fam 41 OF the M Dus i tam 42. whichever ls hrghes) | 1,458 658
Less: Tax Credits/Payments{attach proof) gy ) )
44 Prior Yoar's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT [ 2,255 606
45 Incama ';zrx P;!ymem under MCIT from Previous Quarterls | = ]
46 Income Tax Payment undar RegulariMormal Rate from Previous Guanaris | - E
4T Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year | 1]
48 Creditable Tax Withhald from Previous Quarter's per BIR Form No. 2307 | 2,385,278
48 Creditable Tax Withneld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarter | - BB0,B13
50 Foraign Tax Cradits, if appllicabie | ¥
§1 Tax Pald in Retutn Proviously Filed, if this is an Amended Return | = [i]
52 Special Tax Credits | (o — -[;
Dther Credits/Payments (Saecit e ——
53 | —= 0
54 | o ————— = | ]
55 Total Tax Crodis/Payments (Swm ol itams 44 10 41 | 5511685
56 Met Tax Payable (Overpayment) frem 43 Less fam 55) | (4,055.037)
| Part V - Tax Ralief Availment
87 Spacial Allowable Hemized Deductions (kem 1% o Far ¢ « Applicatis income Tax Aace) [ g
58 Add Spacial Tax Credits ] | o
59 Total Tax Relief Availment (Sun of tams 57 & 42) | 0




NIR Form No. 1702RTv2018 Page 1 of 1
1709.RT Annual Income Tax Return
Ja.'ll.nr!,; 201 BEEENCE:I T:m éﬂ@iﬁﬁﬁn}ﬂpﬂ?gmaEﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘u Jl
i 1702-RT DIHBENCS P
Taxpayer ldentification Number{TIN) Registered Name
| o6a [ 985 | 286 [ 00000  FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Part VI - Schedules i m“’;ﬁ;ﬂﬂﬂ'ﬁ:f’ CABE DR SN
Schedule | - Ordinary Allowable itemized Deductions (Arach sootiona shiuys | ieckesdy
1 Amonization [ a
2 Bad Debts | 0
3 Charitable and Other Contributions | ]
4 Depletion | 0
5 Depreciation | 3,021,815
6 Entertainment, Amusement and Recreation | 1,161,129
7 Fringe Benefits | 7]
B Intaresl [ S B N .-I:I
B Losses | 0
10 Pension Trusts | L)
11 Rental [ 6,594,226
12 Resesrch and Development [ = ]
13 Salaries, Wages and Allowances | 50,357,722
14 558, GSIS, Philheaith, HOMF and Other Contributions | 3,215,034
15 Taxes and Licenses | 1.11:13:5_06
16 Transporiation and Travel | — 1.5&&3?
17 Oihers{Deductions Subject to Wilhhokding Tax and Other Expenses) (Spechy beiow: Acg aouiiona! Breel(s). i necessary) L
a Janitorial and Messengerial Services | . - 104 027
b Profassional Fees | __36-502?2
o Secwily Services | = 1:T_5:r":';ﬁﬁ;
d [GAS AND OIL B B.745.922
e [SUPPLIES - B 11,985 064
{ REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE | 101,044
g LIGHT AND WATER [ 663,698
h JADS AND PROMO o 40,795,190
| [OTHERS i < 25,643,570
18 Total Ordinary AHowuhla-lurnlznd Deductions {Sum of imms 1 i3 17 -]. : = 15&.5‘:‘3,5‘??
I3chedule Il - Special Allowable Itemized Doductions (arach sonions shest's & mecessarnd
Descrption Legal Bas's Amaount
1| — I I ] 0
i T s | 0
3 | | | 0
4 | ! | g
§ Total Special Allowable Hemized Deductions isum of bems 110 4) [ = = |




BIR Form No. 1702RTv2018 Page 1 of |

r;a;ﬂ[;n-r Annual Income Tax Return

Corporation, Partnership and Other Mon-indiy idual

Jenusry 2048(EHCS) Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate

Page 4 ATO2AT O1HBENCS P

T_ax payer Identification Number{TIN} Registered Name
| o004 | B85 | 288 | ooDoO FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC,
|Bchedule |il - Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO]

1 Gross Income | T2 B32,009

2 Less Ordinary Allowable emized Deductions | 158,878,976

3 Mat Operating Loss (tem T Less ifem 2] (To Schedule 1A, fem T4) | I:E!E.B'I.I.S,_ﬂ.ﬁ::’]l
Ischedule 1A - Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) 5””'““’”‘2‘&%‘“@“’“““““ o

Net Operating Lows B) NOLCO Applied Previous Yearls

Year Incurred A) Amaunt
) 2024 [ 86,048,087 | 0
s [ @022 [ T ap5ases [ 0
B | 2021 b 97431141 | o 0
7| | BT §
%unﬁnua.!j-un ol Schedule |ILA jrem numosrs condinue fom tabie above) ) .
C) NOLCO Expired D) NOLCO Applied Current Year ) "‘["é’f:"im 'Egsf é'-':lapﬁihﬁ!
y S— 5| 5,006 087
N o 6] 4054 485
6 | 0f ]| 87431141
7 | 0| of S | - __I:;
8 Total NOLCO rum of toms 4012 70) | 0
|8chedule IV -Computation of Minimum corporate Income Tax{MCIT)
Yaar A) Normal Income Tax as Adjusied 8) MCIT C) Excass MCIT _?::r Mormal income
1 222 | o 762,674 | — 762,614
2| WB | 0] o 2,602,388 | 2,602,388
3 | [ of of 0

IContinuation of Schedule v fllem numbers continue from fable abowe)

G Balance of Evcoss MCIT Allowabio as Tax

0) Excess MCIT Applied/Used in  E) Expired Portion of Excese  F) Excass MCIT Applied this Cument il $a¢ Bicosacing Vases

Pravious Yaars MCIT Taxatie Year {6 =0 Lass (D +E = A}
1 | o] 0| ] 762,614
2 | 0] ol ] 2,602,388
3| of 0| - E[__ -0
4 Total Excess MCIT Applied (Som of tams 17 1o 5 | i 0

chedule ¥ - Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Against Taxable Income jArsch acoibonal snests, If necsssary

1 Mel Income/(Loss) per Books | F2.194,4‘I-1}.
Add: Non-deductible Expenses/Taxabie Cther Income T -

? DEFERRED REVENUE ADDITIONS | o 44,587 654

3 OTHERS ' == | 45,975,230

4 Total (Swm ol iems 10 H = =_— TB.WTETE:E
Less: A) Mon-Taxabie iIncome and Income Subjectad 10 Final Tax il

5 INTEREST INCOME SUBJECT TO FINAL TAX | 11,220,187

& MEMBERSHIP DUES NON TAXABLE | 20,403,133

B) Special Daductions

7 RETIREWENT BENEFITS PAID [ v

8 DOTHERS | 63,338,045

8 Total (Sum of iems 5 16 & | 104,814,540

|

10 Met taxable Income {Lo8S) fuem 4 Less fem 8) {66,045,067)




COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEC Registration Number

Als|o|8|6|0(0[3|4]1(8

COMPANY NAME
FIA|I|R|W|A]|Y]|S & BIL|U|E|W|A|T|E|R RIE|S|O|R|T

G|O|L|F & CI|OJU|N|T|IR]Y cjLiu|Bj., I [N]C

PRINCIPAL OFFICE { No./ Street / Barangay [ City | Town / Provined]

=

BlA|R|A|N|G|A|Y BI|A|[L|A|B|A|G N|E|W C|O[A|S]|T]|.
I|S|L]IA|IN|D O|F BI|O|R|A|C|A]Y].,
M{UIN]IL|C]I|PLAJL]L]T]Y O|F AlK|{LJA|IN
PIRIOQ|V|I|N|C|E 2| F AlKIL|A|IN
Form Typa Depariment reguiring the raport Swcondary Licensa Type, If Applicable
F|S|2]4 C|RIM|D N A
COMPANY INFORMATION
Company's amail Address Company’s Telephone Number Mobille Number
NA GaT-3521 NA
No. of Stockholders Annual Meeting (Month/Day) Flscal Year (Month/Day)
21 IR0 WERNESDAY OF JULY Dacember 31
CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
The designatiad cantact persan MUST be an Officer of Me Corporation
Nmﬂﬂum_?isun Email Addrass Tolephene Humbaer's Mobile Number
[ JENNIE MAGTALAS I 637-3521 | NA
| CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS |

Sth Floor Renalssance Tower 1000, Meralco Ave. Ortigas Pasig Clty

Note 7 ¢ In case of death, resgination or cessation of office of the afficer designated as contoct person, such incident shall be reported o the
Commission within thirty (30) colendar doys from the occurrence thereof with informetion ond complete contact detalls of the new contact person

designated.
2+ All Boxes must be properly and completely filled-up. Failure to do so shall couse the deloy in updating the corparation’s records with the

Commission and/or non-receipt of Notice of Deficlencies. Further, non-receipt of Notice of Deficlencles shall not excuse the corporation from lobility
for its deficiencies.




Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf
& Country Club, Inc.

Financial Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023

and Years Ended December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022

and

Independent Auditors’ Report



FAmRwAYS & BLUEWATER

RERCRT GOLT ANDCOLNTRY CLUD INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club, Ing. is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, as
at and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, in accordance with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITOr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

DIAZ MURILLO DALUPAN AND COMPANY, the independent auditor, appointed by the
stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of
presentation upon completion of such audit.

Mr. WILBUR L. CHAN
Chairman of the Board

Ms. LAIL{ANI V. vu,LAENUEVﬁM

Treasurer
. _ N3 APR 2025
Signed this of 2025 na  APR 2075
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o before me, this da}r of , 2025 inthe

City of Pasig, affiants exhibiting before me the followi

Wilbur [ bﬁan

Lo &=
ani tlanucya Aty. Ridhard Leo M. Baldueza i

Place/Date of Issue

Doc. No.: [[ﬂ,- Moty Pubiliv for Queain Cily
Page No.: | (ND-230 7 024-2025)
Book No.: }‘\’l Uontil December 31, 2025
Series of 2025 i ol N 534953
O ER N S0A240E wba2us Placidel Balican
SICLE Cumpliaive N v T T A T PR TR

t
| FII L imne S 7208 gl=17-005)



; ’ WE ARE AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF
D M D Diaz Murillo HLEB} THE GLOBAL ADVISORY
Dalupan and Company AND ACCOUNTING NETWORK

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Members

FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit and Stock Corporation)

Barangay Balabag, New Coast

Island of Boracay, Municipality of Malay

Province of Aklan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club,
Inc., (A Nonprofit and Stock Corporation) (the Club) which comprise the statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in members’ equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club, Ine. as at December 31,
2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors ' Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gavernance for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal contral as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control,

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going
CONCern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audits.



Report on supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to the financial statements is presented for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management of Fairways & Bluewater Resort
Golf & Country Club, Ine. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audits of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Diaz Murillo Dalupan and Company

Tax Identification No. 003-294-§22

BOA/PRC No. 0234, effective until June 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001911-000-2025, effective until March 11, 2028

Pariner

CPA Certificate No. 96749

Tax ldentification No. 201-766-994

PTR No. 10478582, January 9, 2025, Makati City

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001911-004-2025, effective until March 11, 2028

April 3, 2025



FATRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC,

(A Nonprofit and Stock Corporation)
Statements of Financial Position

December 31

2024 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - note 6 P296,835.222 P334,066,497
Trade and other receivables (net) - note 7 31,921,902 23,633,804
Prepayments and other current assets - note 8 64,648,281 57,278,462
393,405,405 414,978,763
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (net) - note 9 3,504,609,481 - 3,546,815,456
Right-of-use assets (net) - note 13 23,471,224 16,250,651
Deferred tax assets - note 21 102,185,502 - 76,413,077
Security deposit - note 13 260,049 560,049
3,630,826,256 3,640.039,233
TOTAL ASSETS - - P4,024,231,661 . P4,055,017,996
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables - note 10 P442,539,380 415,108,105
Advances from related parties - note 11 185,188,212 192,805,324
Contract liabilities - note 12 47,867,702 61,118,359
Lease liabilities - current portion - note 13 9,172,084 6,795,439
684,767,378 675,827,227
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefits obligation - note 20 53,256,143 33,454,223
Lease liabilities - noncurrent portion - note 13 18,388,628 14,107,294
71,644,771 47,561,517
756,412,149 723,388,744
Members' Equity - note 14
Proprietary membership 1,969,900 1,969,900
Additional paid-in capital 3,658,718,136 1,658,718,136
Remeasurement gain on retirement benefits - note 20 7,792,698 19,741,019
Cumulative deficiency of revenues over expenses (400,661,222) (348,799,803)
3,267,819,512 3,331,629,252
TﬂTﬁL LIAB]LIT[ES AN‘D MEMBERS' EQUITY $4,024,231,661 ?4,055,017,996

f“}" he accampdn}mg ' notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)



FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nenprofit and Stock Corporation)
Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis. J

2024 2023 2022
REVENUES - note 15
Membership dues 29,493,133  P34,812,272- P33,928,087
Villa operations 484,338,399 486,299,989 242,210,532
Food and beverage 10,453,627 3,221,081 871,894
Golf operations and other activities 55,901,202 45.838,989, 18,950,514
580,186,361 570,172,331 295,961,027
EXPENSES
Direct costs - note 16 502,892,773 402,434,520 221,394,114
Operating expenses
Selling - note 17 40,977,811 38,164,670 14,851,039
General and administrative - note 18 104,828,072 £8.542.675 - 65,899,333
648,698,656 529,141,865 302,144,486
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (68,512,295) 41,030,466 (6,183,459)
OTHER CHARGES (NET) - note 19 3,682,116 10,209,193 7,117,332
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (72,194,411) 310,821,273 (13,300,791)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) - note 21 (20,332,992) 7,416,947 (3,464,298)
NET INCOME (LOSS) (51,861,419) 23,404,326 (9,836,493).
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periois
Gain (loss) on remeasurement of retirement
benefits (net) - note 20 (11,948,311) (2,832,084) 17,153,232
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (P63,809,740)  P20,572,242 P7,316,739
—_——e———— — —= — -
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FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit and Stock Corporation)
Statements of Cash Flows

: Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax (P72,194,411) - P30,821273~ (P13,300,791)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization - notes 9 and 13 64,648,214 105,894,561 75,205,283
Retirement benefits expense - note 20 4,633,990 4,013,128 7,126,555
Interest expense - note 13 1,739,998 1,265,015 147,816
Reversal of liabilities - note 10 - (342,264), =
Interast income - note 6 (11,220,197) (5,441,736) (73,839)
Operating income (loss) before working capital changes (12,392,406) - 136,209,977 69,105,024
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables 3,617,290 (1,920,667) (5,602,421)
Prepayments and other current assets (8,826,478} 13,725,115 24,346,541
Increase in:
Trade and other payables 8,979,579 128,750,646 44,600,617
Contract liabilities (13,250,657} 3,973,035 1,313,604
Cash generated from (used in) operations (21,872,672) 280,738,106 133,763,365
Retirement benefits paid - note 20 (763,165) (373,306) (2,629,257)
Interest received 10,149,393 5,319,615 73,839
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities {12,486,444) 285,684,415 131,207,947
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment - notes 9 and 14 (14,979,364).  (99,389,888) (31,566,855)
Decrease in other current assets - 1,000,000 -
Net cash used in inves@g activities (14,979,364) {93.339,335} (31,566,855)
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment for lease liabilities - note 13 (9.765,467) (8,156,904) {2,786,578)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (37,231,275), 179,137,623 96,854,514
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - note 6
At beginning of year 334,066,497 154,028,874 58,074,360
Atend of year . Hﬂlﬁ.=335,122 P334,ﬂ6£,49? P154,928,874

— —
(The accompanying nates are an infegral part of these financial statements.)



FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit and Stock Corporation)

Notes to Financial Statements

As at and for the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was incorporated in the
Philippines and was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on

March 26, 1996 as a nonprofit and stock corporation. The Club was established for the primary
purpose of promoting the social, recreational and athletic activities on a nonprofit basis among its
members, the main objective and undertaking of which will be the construction, operation and
maintenance of a vacation resort, golf course and lodging facilities.

The Club is located at Boracay Island which is world famous for its sun, sea and powder, soft
white sand. The Club covers an area of approximately seventy-five (75) hectares. more or less,
spanning the entire width of the island at its very center.

The Club is exclusive and organized on a nonprofit basis for the sole benefit of its members. The
authorized capital stock consists of 25,920 no-par value common shares divided into ten (10)
classes of shares. Shareholders of the Club have proprietary interest in the assets of the Club,
consisting of an 18-hole golf course with a clubhouse and lodging facilities.

Ownership of a share entitles the registered owner to the use of the golf course, and all the sports
and other facilities of the Club, and lodging facilities (except Class D shares) but subject to the
terms and conditions prescribed in the Club’s Articles of Incorporation, By-laws, and to the
policies, rules and regulations as may from time to time be promulgated by the Board of Directors
(BOD).

On April 25, 1996, a Certificate of Permit to Offer Securities was issued authorizing the Club to
sell 8,640 shares of various classes.

On April 7, 2009, the SEC suspended the Club’s Registration Statement and Certificate of Permit
to Sell Securities to the Public.

On May 22, 2013, the Club filed a Revised Amended Registration Statement with the SEC
reducing the number of shares with lodging facilities to be sold to the public to only 5,000 shares
based on its Amended Articles of Incorporation. On May 30, 2013, the SEC rendered effective
the Revised Amended Registration Statement.

The Club’s membership dues were not subjected to income tax and value-added tax (VAT) in
accordance with the Supreme Court decision dated August 13, 2019,

The Club’s principal place of business is located at Barangay Balabag, New Coast, Island of
Boracay, Municipality of Malay, Province of Aklan. The Club maintains a satellite office located
at the 2nd Floor, Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City.

The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by the Club's BOD on
April 3, 2025.



Motes to Financial Statements
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PROJECT AGREEMENT

In 1996, the Club, together with Global Estate Properties, Inc., formerly Fil-Estate Properties,
Inc., (GEPI or the Developer), entered into a Project Agreement with several landowners to
develop several parcels of land located in Boracay Island, Aklan. Under the Agreement, the
parties agreed to the following terms and conditions, among others:

a) The landowners shall contribute their respective properties to form part of the entire area
covered by the project.

b) The Developer shall finance and develop the properties into a world-class resort golf course.

¢) The share certificates allocated to the Developer shall be released by the Club pro-rata as per
work accomplishment. Release of the share shall be made for every ten percent (10%)
accomplishment of the Developer.

d) The Club shall hold title over the properties to be developed and included in the Project’s
resort and country club component and shall operate the same.

The marketing of the club shares shall be undertaken by the Developer or any of its sister
marketing companies.

In the Project Information Memorandum dated April 1996, the Club projected that the
approximate amount to be devoted for the development of the Project is about P7.2 billion,

In the Registration Statement of the Club dated March 1996, the Club applied for secondary
offering of 8,640 shares for the completion of Phase 1 of the Project.

However, the adverse economic development in the Southeast Asian Region that started in July
1997 led to a downturn in the stock market, slowdown in property development, substantial
depreciation of Philippine peso against the U.S. dollar and high interest rates. These major factors
adversely affected the continuous development and construction of the Project and selling of golf
and country club shares. As a result, in 1997, the development and construction of the Project
were suspended due to financial difficulties of the Developer.

In 1998, the Club commenced the operation of the golf course which is now 100% complete and
already playable. The resort lodging facilities are in various stages of completion.

The approved Revised Amended Registration Statement with the SEC in 2013 reduced the
number of ladging facilities that it has to build and likewise limiting the number of shares entitled
to lodging. The rest of the other shares were accordingly reclassified to Class D shares which are
not entitled to lodging facilities.

The adjustment in the number of buildings needed for the limited number of shares entitled to
lodging facilities consequently frees up from the Project approximately seventy-four (74) lot pads
initially allocated for building of the lodging facilities, with an area of 2,000 square meters each
lot pads, more or less, or an aggregate total area of 14.8 hectares.

Pursuant to the Revised and Re-Stated Project Agreement of the Club with the Developer and the
various landowners, the landowners arc only obligated to contribute to the Club such land as
would be necessary to accommodate all the facilities of the Club.
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The Revised Amended Registration Statement filed in 2013 was rendered effective subject to the
completion of all facilities the Club committed to build as described below.

As at December 31, 2024, the following facilities are 100% complete:

a) Resort Facilities

*  Building 2 *  Building 16

*  Building 3 «  Building 17

+ Building 6 +  Country Clubhouse

* Building 7 »  Swimming Pool

* Building 7a » Sauna and Massage Room
+ Building 8

b) Golf Course and Facilities

« 18-hole Golf Course «  Maintenance Building
*  Golf Clubhouse » Tee House

» Halfway House »  Storm Huts

«  Starter Shed » Bag Drop Area

+  Golf Proshop

¢) Common Facilities to Resort Golf & Country Club
d) Welcome Center

e) Country Club Facilities

» Table Tennis *  Function Room
= Card Room « Billiard Room
« Pickleball Court « Basketball Shooting Area

« Badminton Court
The properties covered by the golf courses, the lodging facilities and other attendant facilities are
already transferred and tumned over to the Club by the Developer. The Certificates of Titles are
already under the name of the Club.

The total area subject of the 18-hole golf course project, lot pads of the seven (7) buildings of
lodging facilities and other facilities, is approximately seventy-five (75) hectares.

No new similar project agreement has been entered between the Club and the Developer.
STATUS OF OPERATIONS

The net loss in 2024 increased the Club’s cumulative deficiency of revenues over expenses from
P348.8 million as of December 31, 2023 to P400.7 million as of December 31, 2024.
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The Club exerts continuous effort to maintain its financial viability to sustain its current and future
operations. The Club focuses on generating sufficient revenues to support the current operations,
improvement of facilities, fulfilling financial obligations, and continuously finding ways to
cutting down and rationalizing operational expenditures without sacrificing the quality of service
that the Club offers to its members and guests. In the past, the funds needed to support its
operations depended largely on the Club’s collections of membership dues.

The years 2020, 2021, and 2022 were the years when the COVID-19 pandemic made a major
impact on a global scale affecting all businesses and industries where the tourism industry was
seriously hard-hit not just in the Philippines but in the entire world. The Club incurred a
significant loss in its operations due to the lockdowns and implementation of certain travel
restrictions brought about by the said pandemic. Even when the pandemic restrictions were eased
at a certain point in the middle of 2023, traveling was not a high priority for most people thus the
demand for the hospitality industry remains to be low as compared to the pre-pandemic era.

The Club will continue to promote its various dining amenities, convention and party facilities,
golf game and other activities. The possible increase in membership dues is being considered at
this time as well and the following measures will be implemented:

o  Increase revenues in golf related activities by developing programs, promotions and strategies
to encourage mere guests and members to play in the Club’s golf course, including aggressive
marketing for staging golf tournaments.

b. Continue all rehabilitation program works, both major and minor anes and sustain a good
playing condition of the golf course and its ancillary facilities, building and villas, restaurant
and bar, pools and other amenities.

¢. Ensure that all villas are ready to take in more guests to increase the financial performance of
the Club.

d. Strengthen the sales and marketing strategies and schemes to explore more avenues and
market segments that will increase the financial performance of the Club.

e. Continue to increase the positive exposure of the Club in online media sites and networks to
enhance the awareness of more people about what the Club can offer.

f  Continue the efforts of the members’ relations team to improve invitations to members to pay
their dues on time and intensify collection from inactive members by apprising them of the
new facilities and amenities that the Club will offer to them including the new Clubhouse for
exclusive use of members.
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g Ensure that the Club maintains its 3 1SO-IMS certification by strictly implementing the
standards related to Quality Management System, Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and Environmental Management System. The Club was awarded its 1¥
ISO-IMS certification in 2018 which was valid up to December 2021 subject to quarterly
audits and annual surveillance by its Dubai-based certifying body. The Club is the only
hotel/resort in Boracay that has an ISO-IMS certification to this date. In December 2021, a
re-application for its 2% certification was lodged and the Club passed all requirements to get
the 3-year certification. The 3™ re-application for certification was done in November 2024,
After a 3-day audit and conference, the Dubai-based certifying body announced on November
29, 2024 that the Club passed its 31 1SO-IMS certification which will be valid for another 3
years until December 2027 but subject to quarterly audits and annual surveillance. The Club
will work on more improvements as it prepares for the 1* annual surveillance for the L
certification.

h, Ensure that the Club maintains its partnership with World Wide Fund (WWF) by
continuously implementing its environmental programs that aim fo restore, preserve and
protect the gifts of nature and the immediate community. The “One Hotel” program will be
strengthened as well to enhance the Club’s sustainability efforts for WWF's programs and
cause. The Club will maintain its commitment to operate an internal material segregation and
management facility. It will also continue to manage its hazardous waste, including the
shipping out of used oil and hazardous waste from the island through a professional
organization based outside Boracay. Tree planting activities, war-on-site, and other
environmental preservation efforts will be implemented continuously to support the Club’s
commitments to WWF.

¢ Ensure that the Club maintains its certification as a Conde Nast property as this differentiates
the Club from the many other industry players and it guarantees the Club a better market
niche. There are only three resorts out of 500+ establishments in Boracay Island that is
certified by Conde Nast.

j. Ensurethat the Club continues to get recognized by various international award giving bodies,
such as Conde Nast Excellence Awards, World Travel Awards, World Golf Awards, and
Interval International, who have awarded the Club consistently over the years on account of
product and service excellence, and sustainability, even during the pandemic years.

The Club also manages the Welcome Center, Land and Sea Transfer, Security, Water System.
Waste Management System, and Sewage Treatment System in line with its commitment to
sustainability and to maintain its four-star status and to possibly achieve a five-star status. E-
jeepneys and e-shuttles complement our fleet of diesel-run vehicles to ensure that guests will be
transported to places they want to go to at any given time.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized in this note. The policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Club have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards. The term PFRS in general includes all

applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations issued

Ey ic ];I;Eigppine Sustainability and Financial Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) and adopted
y the i

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except when otherwise
indicated. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services and fair value of the consideration received in exchange for
incurring a liability.

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (P), the Club’s functional currency. All
amounts are rounded to the nearest peso except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years except
for the following amended PFRS that are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2024,

PAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent. The narrow-scope
amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified
as either current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g.
the receipt of a waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what PAS | means
when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The amendments could affect the classification of
liabilities, particularly for entities that previously considered management’s intentions to
determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted into equity. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments do not have a material impact on the financial statements

of the Club.

New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards effective
subsequent to January 1. 2024

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of the Club’s financial statements are listed
below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Club reasonably
expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a
future date. The Club intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.



Notes to Financial Statements
Page -7

PFRS 18, Presemtation and Disclosure in Financial Statements. The new standard will replace
PAS I Presentation of Financial Statements. The new standard introduces the following key new
requirements:

= Entities are required to classify all income and expenses into five categories in the statement
of income: operating, investing, financing, discontinued operations and income tax
categories. Entities are also required to present specified totals and subtotals: the main change
relates to the mandatory inclusion of ‘Operating profit or loss’. The other required subtotals
are ‘Profit or loss’ and *Profit or loss before financing and income taxes’

e Management-defined performance measures are disclosed in a single note in the financial
statements,

« Enhanced guidance on how to group information in the financial statements.

e Entities are required to use the operating profit subtotal as the starting point for the statement
of cash flows when presenting operating cash flows under the indirect method.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, with
earlier application permitted. The Club is still in the process of assessing the impact of the new
standard.

Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

e inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Club.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Iiahilitie:s
«  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
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« Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Club determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Club determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and
for non-recurring measurement. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Fair value measurement disclosures of financial and non-financial assets are presented in Note 25
to the financial statements.

“Day 1" Difference

When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Club recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 17 difference) in the statements of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability.
In cases where data used are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognized in the statements of comprehensive income when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Club
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 1" difference amount.

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition of financial instruments

The Club recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities in the statements of financial position
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place are recognized on the settlement date.

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component,
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value including transaction
costs, except for those financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
where the transaction costs are charged to expense in the period incurred, Trade receivables that

do not contain a significant financing compaonent are recognized initially at their transaction price.

The Club classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and FVPL. The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Club's business
model for managing the financial assets. The Club’s business model is determined at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. The Club’s business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.
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The Club classifies its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method or at FVPL.

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized when both of the following conditions are met:

« the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method less allowance for impairment, Gains and losses are recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income when the financial assets at amortized cost are
derecognized, modified or impaired. These financial assets are included in current assets if
maturity is within twelve (12) months from the end of reporting period. Otherwise, these are
classified as noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, included under financial assets at amortized cost are the
Club’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and security deposit (see Notes 6,
7 and 14).

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
held for trading, or designated as at FVPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Club’s financial liabilities at amortized cost include trade
and other payables (excluding payable to government agencies), advances from related parties
and lease liabilities (see Notes 10, 11 and 13).

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Club retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to third party under a “pass-through” arrangement,
or

« the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Club’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Club could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability was discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Club recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt instruments that
are measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial asset.

Credit losses are the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Club expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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The Club assesses at each end of the reporting period whether the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition. For those credit exposures for which there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECLs. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within twelve (12) months after the reporting period.

For cash and other assets, the Club applies the low credit risk simplification. The probability of
default and loss given defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit
investments. It is the Club’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on lifetime ECL.

For trade and other receivables, the Club applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. The
Club recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of each reporting period. The
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Club’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment, including time value of money where appropriate.

When the credit risk on financial instruments for which lifetime ECLs have been recognized
subsequently improves, and the requirement for recognizing lifetime ECLSs is no longer met, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting period,
except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Club recognizes impairment loss (reversals) in profit or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Club compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the end of reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Club considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
nformation considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Club’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Club’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g, the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its

amortized cost;
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s existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;
an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, econom ic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

[rrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Club presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
maore than ninety (90) days past due, unless the Club has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise,

Despite the foregoing, the Club assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the end of reporting period. A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

the financial instrument has a low risk of default;
the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

o adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Club considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Club regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of Default

The Club considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of
the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Club, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Club).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Club considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than ninety (90) days past due unless the Club has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Credit-impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
the lenders of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower concessions that the lenders would not
otherwise consider;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off Palicy

The Club writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, €.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one (1) year past due, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Club’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognized in profil or loss.

Prepayments and er C nt Asse

Prepayments and other current assets comprise of advances to suppliers, deferred input VAT,
prepaid insurance, prepaid real property tax, prepaid rental, creditable withholding tax and other
prepaid items.

Advances to suppliers represent advance payments made for goods to be delivered or services to
be rendered. These are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Creditable withholding tax is deducted from income tax payable on the same year the revenue is
recognized.

Prior to January 1, 2022, deferred input VAT is amortized over the useful life of the cost of
equipment or 60 months, whichever s shorter. Effective January 1, 2022, amortization of input
VAT on capital goods acquired in 2022 is no longer allowed and these will be fully recognized
outright and claimed as input tax credits against output tax during the month when the capital
goods are purchased or imported. Claims for input VAT and other prepaid taxes are stated at face
value less provision for impairment, if any. Allowance for unrecoverable input VAT and prepaid
taxes, if any, is maintained by the Club at a level considered adequate to provide for potential
uncollectible portion of the claims.
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Pro d Equipment

Property and equipment are initially carried at cost. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in
value. All other properties and equipment account are carried at a cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after
the asset has been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance are normally recognized
as expense in the period costs are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and
equipment only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will
flow to the Club and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets:

Number of Years

Golf course 50
Golf course improvements 5
Villas and building 50
Villa improvements 5
Transportation equipment 5to 10
Maintenance and other fixed assets Jws
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10
Kitchen and housekeeping equipment 3to5
Land improvements 5

In 2024, the Club revised the useful life of “Villas and building” from 25 years (o 50 vears.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the period and method of depreciation is consistent with the expected pattern of
aconomic benefits from items of property and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Fully
depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is recognized in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost less any
impairment in value. This includes the cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction
in progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and are ready

for use.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.
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Impairment of Non-financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Club assesses whether there is any indication that any of
its assets may have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Club
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense, unless the relevant asset is
carvied at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been & change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income, unless the

relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Leases

The Club determines at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease by assessing
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Club as lessor

The Club leases out store and office spaces to concessionaires under an operating lease agreement.
Lease income from operating leases is recognized as income in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

|ease modifications on rent concessions, if any are accounted for by the Club as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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Club as fessee

Long-term leases

For all leases with a term of more than twelve (12) months, the Club recognizes a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

Righr-of-use assets

At the commencement date of the lease (which is when the underlying asset is available for use),
the Club recognizes the right-of-use assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
which consist of the amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred and
payments made at or prior to commencement date less lease incentives received and estimated
costs 1o be incurred by the lessee for restoration or dismantling of the underlying asset to be
suitable to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. Subsequent to
commencement date, the right-of-use asset shall be measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability.

The right-of-use assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term which is
shorter than the estimated useful life of the underlying assets:

Number of Years
Right-of-use of land 6
Right-of-use of building 3

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, (which is when the underlying asset is available for use),
the Club recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Club shall use an incremental borrowing rate.

Variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liability are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers payment
occurs, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset under another

Standard.

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured to reflect changes in the lease term, exercising of a
purchase option (using a revised discount rate), amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees (using unchanged discount rate), or future lease payments resulting from a change or
a rate used to determine those payments (using an unchanged discount rate). Such
remeasurements are treated as adjustments to the right-of-use asset,
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Extension amd termination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended. The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually
exercised or not or the Club becomes obliged to exercise or not. The assessment of reasonable
certainty is revised only if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Club applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment
and other rentals (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Leases with variable lease paymenis

The Club recognizes payments for short-term and long-term leases with variable lease payments
depending on the future revenue as expenses when incurred over the lease term.

The Club’s agreement with unit owners has variable lease payments wherein rental is equivalent
1o certain percentage of revenues, net of VAT, other charges and taxes.

Income Taxes

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable income. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each reporting
date, the Club reassesses the need to recognize previously unrecognized deferred income tax

asset.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry-
forward benefits of unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, carry forward benefits of unused tax credits from excess of
MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax asset against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Emplovee Benefi
Shori-term employee benefits

The Club recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered
by employees during the accounting period that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
(12) months after the end of the reporting period. Short-term benefits given by the Club to its
employees include salaries and wages, fringe benefits, 13th month pay, Social Security System
(SSS), Philhealth and Home Development Mutual Fund (HDMF) contribution. The Club
recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered by
employees during the accounting period.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

Post-employment benefits

The Club has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit plan that define an amount of retirement
benefit based on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. The net
defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan asset, if any.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method, The defined benefit cost comprises of the service cost, net interest on the defined
benefit liability or asset and the remeasurement of net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service cost, which includes current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements, is recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized when
the plan amendment or curtailment occurs. Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset,
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit

or loss.
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Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and return on plan asset (excluding net
interest on defined benefit liability) is recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise. Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income account “Gain (loss) on
remeasurement of retirement benefits (net)” is not reclassified to another equity account in
subsequent periods. The difference between the interest income component of net interest and the
actual return on plan asset is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The Club’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditures required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Related Parties and Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among
entities, which are under common control with the reporting entity, or between and/or among
entities and its key management personnel, directors or its shareholders.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationships, and not merely the legal form.

Members' Equity

Proprietary membership is held by a duly approved member or members having one (1) pro-rata
share of the outstanding capital of the Club.

Additional paid-in capital is credited when shares are sold at premium, the difference between the
proceeds and stated value. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance are chargeable to
#Additional paid-in capital” account.

Cumulative deficiency of revenues over expenses includes all current and prior year results as
disclosed in the statements of comprehensive income.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Club expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. All contracts and
arrangements with customers generally undertake to provide single performance obligation at a
fixed price which is mainly the delivery of goods or service. The Club generally concludes that
it is acting as the principal in its revenue arrangements.
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The Club recognizes revenue from the following sources:

(@) Membership dues, which pertain to monthly members’ dues, are recognized over time when
the membership dues are due and demandable, net of any discount. Advance payments from
members are recorded and shown under “Contract liabilities” in the statements of financial
position. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue in the following vear when the Club
performs its obligation under the contract.

(b) Villa operations revemie is recognized over time, when services are rendered. For the
accommodation fee, the revenue is recognized when the room facilities are used and the
related services are rendered.

fe) Food and beverage revenue is recognized at a point in time upon delivery and billing to
customers.

(d) Golf operations and other activities revenue is recognized over time when services are
rendered or upon the use of the Club's facilities.

(e) Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

(fi Other income is recognized at a point in time upon consummation of the transaction giving
rise to it without the Club performing additional acts to earn the income.

Contract Balances

Receivables — represents the Club’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
the passage of time is required before payments of the consideration is due).

Contract assets — represents the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Club performs by transferring goods or service to a customer
before the customer pays the consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized
for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities — the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Club
has received consideration or an amount of consideration is due from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Club transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Club performs under the contract.

ost and Expen ecognition

Cost and expenses are recognized when decrease in the future economic benefit related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase in liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses
are recognized: on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earning of
specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when
economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with
income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when an expenditure
produces no future economic benefit or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do
not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statements of financial position as an asset,
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Direct costs. Direct costs are recognized as an expense when the related services have been
performed.

Operating expenses. Operating expenses consist of cost incurred in administering the business
and selling expenses. Operating expenses are expensed as incurred,

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Club has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made with the amount of the
obligation, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, an increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as an interest expense. When the Club expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain
and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statements
of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the financial statements, but disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements, If it has become virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial
statements.

Events after Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s financial position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements, when material.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based
upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances at the end of the reporting
period. Actual results could differ materially from such estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.



Notes to Financial Statements
Page-22

Material Accounting Judgment
a) Determining Operating Lease Commitment
Club as lessor

The Club has entered into lease agreements as a lessor. The Club has determined that it retains all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties as the Club considered among others
the length of the lease term as compared with the estimated useful life of the assets. Accordingly,
the Club accounted for these as operating leases.

Material Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

a) Assessment for ECL on Trade and Other Receivables

The Club uses a provision matrix based on historical rates for trade and other receivables. The
provision matrix specifies provision rates depending on the number of days that a trade receivable
is past due. The Club adjusts the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information specific to the debtors and the economic environment, The Club regularly reviews
the assumptions used for estimating ECL to reduce any differences between estimates and actual
credit loss experience.

The Club has assessed that the existing allowance for ECL on trade and other receivables is
sufficient based on the expected performance of these receivables. The Club has assessed that the
balances are normally collected within the normal credit terms. Accordingly, no additional
provision for ECL on receivables was recognized in 2024 and 2023.

The carrying amount of the Club’s trade and other receivables amounted to P31,921,902 and
P23,633,804 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Allowance for ECL recognized in
the statements of financial position amounted to 3,018,733 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023
(see Note 7).

b) Impairment of Property and Equipment and Right-of-use Assels

The Club assesses the impairment of property and equipment and right-of-use assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be
recoverable, The factors that the Club considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include a) significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results; b) significant changes in the manner of usage of the acquired assets or the
strategy for the Club’s overall business; and ¢) significant negative industry or economic trends.
The Club estimates the recoverable amount as the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated from the continued use of the assets, the Club is required to make estimates and
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.

Though management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the determination of
recoverable amounts are reasonable and appropriate, significant changes in these assumptions
may materially affect the assessment of the recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment
loss could have a material adverse effect in the results of operations.
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The carrying amount of property and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to
£3,528,080,705 and P3,563,066,107 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (see Notes
9 and 13).

Management has determined that there are no events or circumstances in 2024 and 2023 that may
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets are not recoverable.

¢} Useful lives of Property and Equipment

Estimates are made on the useful lives of the Club’s property and equipment based on the periods
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives are reviewed
periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates duc to physical wear
and tear, technological or commercial obsolescence, or other limits on the use of such assets. In
addition, estimates are based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by the changes in estimates brought about by the factors
mentioned above.

The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and
equipment would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

In 2024, the Club revised the useful life of “Villas and building™ from 25 years to 50 years
resulting in decrease in depreciation of P42,319,126.

The carrying amount of property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$899,316,633 in 2024 and PB842,131,294 in 2023, amounted to P3,504,609,481 and
P3,546,815,456 as at December 31,2024 and 2023, respectively (see Note 9).

d) Lease Term and Incremental Borrowing Rate
i Lease Term

The Club entered into lease agreements as a lessee for the use of land, office spaces and
equipment. The lease term applied in the calculation of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities is based on the contractual agreements with the lessor, There were no extension
options applied in the calculation. The Club has also determined the non-cancellable term
of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be extended or in any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

ii.  Incremental Borrowing Rate

Significant management estimate was exercised by the Club in determining the discount
rate, whether the implicit rate, if readily available, or the incremental borrowing rate, to
be used in calculating the present value of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. As the
interest rate cannot be readily determined in the lease, the Club applied the weighted
average incremental borrowing rate obtained from the bank ranging from 2.18% to 7.05%.
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e) Estimated Retirement Benefits Obligation

The determination of the Club’s retirement benefits obligation is dependent on the selection of
certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are
described in Note 20 and include, among others, discount rates and rates of compensation
increase. While the Club believes that the assumptions made in the determination of retirement
benefits are reasonable, significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in
assumptions materially affect the retirement obligations.

The carrying amount of the Club’s retirement benefits obligation as at December 31, 2024 and
2023 amounted to £53,256,143 and $33,454,223, respectively (see Note 20).

f)  Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Club recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Determining the
realizability of deferred tax assets requires the assessment on the availability of taxable profit
expected to be generated from the operations against which the deferred tax assets can be applied.

Based on management’s assessment and judgment, deferred tax assets of £102,185,502 and
P76,413,077 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, are fully recoverable (see Note
21).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Cash on hand P3.066,716 P2,900,446
Cash in banks 58,477,459 105,942,567
Shori-term placement 235,291,047 225,223,484

P296,835,222  P334,066.497

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates, Short-term placement
with a bank has a maturity of 45 days from the date of acquisition and earns interest at the
prevailing market rates.

Interest earned on cash and cash equivalents amounting to P11,220, 197, P5,441,736, 73,839, in
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, is included in “Other charges (net)” account (see Note 19).

There is no restriction on the Club's cash and cash equivalents, and these are available for general
use.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (NET)
This aceount consists of
: 2024 2023
Trade receivables P29.360,098 F20.,677.499
MNontrade:
Accrued interest receivable 1,192,925 122,121
Advances to officers and employees 414,612 466,239
Others 3.973.000 5,386,678
34,940,635 26,652,537
Allowance for ECL (3.018,733) (3.018,733)

P31,921,902  P23.,633 804

Trade receivables, which pertain mainly from hotel bookings, financial institution for credit card
transactions and concessionaires, are usually due within thirty (30) days and do not bear any
interest.

Advances to officers and employees consist of cash advances for purchases of supplies and
courier services subject to liquidation, and loans granted to employees that are unsecured, non-
interest bearing, demandable and generally seitled in cash.

Other receivables pertain to SSS claims receivables and receivables for shared utilities.

Allowance for ECL relates to the following;

2024 2023
Trade receivables 400,000 400,000
Others 2.618.733 2,618,733

3,018,733 $3,018,733

The Club applies the simplified approach in measuring ECLs which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and other receivables.

The Club’s trade and other receivables are not held as collateral for its liabilities and are free from
any liens and encumbrances.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Advances to suppliers 50,257,014 P317.828,636
Deferred input VAT 7,132,631 13,875,273
Creditable withholding tax 4,055,037 2,255,605
Input VAT 2,477,141 108,110
Prepayments:
Insurance 116,568 422,336
Real property taxes - 1.854,145
Dﬁmti 609,590 844,357
"_ P64,648,281  P57,278,462
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Advances to suppliers pertain to down payment for services to be rendered or goods to be
delivered. These are recouped upon receipt of billing from contractors and reversed upon
payment. These advances mainly consist of payments for the materials and other services related
to the construction of Building 8.

Deferred input VAT pertains to VAT on accrued expenses and the unamortized portion of VAT
on transportation equipment and costs of building construction with acquisition cost exceeding
£1,000,000 and is amortized over a period of five years.

Others consist of inventories and advance payments for web hosting fee and maintenance of the
Club’s hotel system.
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Construction in progress pertains to cost incurred for Building 8, which was completed in 2023,

Land improvements pertain to the fences constructed around the Club’s premises.

The depreciation of property and equipment is allocated as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Other direct cost —note 16 54,147,529 P07,068.642 P68.422.275
General and administrative

expenses — note 18 3,037,810 2,720,176 2.879.763

P57,185,339 Pu9, 788,818 P71,302.038

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, Management believes that there is no indication that the

Club’s property and equipment are impaired.

The Club’s property and equipment are not held as collateral for its liabilities and are free from

any liens and encumbrances.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account cansists oft

2024 2023

Trade payables — notes 11 and 23 798,775,014 P113,665,851
Accrued expenses 283,435,513 241,424 808
Retention payable 28,421,958 20933319
Payable to government agencies 12,954,887 11,132,119
Refundable deposits — note 23 1,737,385 1,737,385
Others 17,214,623 17,214,623
£442,539,380 P415,108.105

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within twelve (12) months.

Retention payable represents 10% of the conftract amount due to the contractors related to

construction of Building 8.

Payable to government agencies include SSS payable, HDMF payable, withholding taxes and

other taxes payable.

Refundable deposits represent security deposits paid by concessionaires.

Others consist mainly of the Club’s unpaid share of common expenses with a third party under
the old management. These common expenses include service assessment, transportation, water

and other related expenses.
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Accrued expenses consist of accruals for:

2024 2023
Breakfast fee and other charges P153,381,585 P116,490,288
Management fees — note 11 47,875,078 47,875,078
Contractors 33.504.148 45,103,701
Advertising and promotions 25,674,038 26,057,962
Security and janitorial services 10,282,632 2,698,923
Laundry and water 4,118,656 -
Rental — note 23 2,621,000 459366
Electricity 1,264,795 -
Repairs and maintenance 899,169 -
Professional fees 374,640 363,440
Accrued interest on lease liabilities — note 13 155,892 530,404
Other accrued expenses 2,923,850 1,845,646

P283,435,513  P241,424,808

Breakfast fee and other charges pertain to resort fee collected by the Club and breakfast cost that
are payable to concessionaires.

Accrual to contractors pertain to billings not yet received related to the construction of Building
8.

Accrued advertising and promotions pertain to commission related to hotel revenue and food and
beverage.

Other accrued expenses pertain mostly to the Club’s printing and other operational expenses.
Accrued expenses and other payables are normally settled in the next financial period.

In 2023, the Company reversed certain accounts payable amounting to P342,264. Gain on reversal
of these liabilities is included in “Other charges (net)” in the 2023 statement of comprehensive
income (see Note 19).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. The following

are the specific relationship, amount of transactions, account balances, terms and conditions and
the nature of the consideration to be provided in settlement.

Relationship
Related Party Relationship
GEP1 Developer and common key officers
Fil-Estate Urban Dev't Corp. (FEUDC) Common key officers
Global Estate Resorts Inc. (GERI) Common key officers
Golforee, Inc, Common key officers
Fil-Estate Management, Inc. (FEMI) Common key officers

Fil-Estate Realty Corporation (FERC) Common key officers
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Tramsaction and account balance

Transactions to related parties include revenue and cost of services, management fees, unit
owner’s fees, transfer of properties, and cash advances for working capital requirements. The cash
advances consist mainly of payments for utilities and other transfer taxes for the issuance of
member stock certificates, and payments made to affiliates, suppliers and contractors.

a. Advances from related parties

The details of the advances from related parties are as follow:

Amount of advances Outstanding balance

2024 2023 2024 2023

GERI r2,422,034 P2,564,370  P58,162,151 P55,740,117
GEPI - - 57,479,394 57,479,394
FEUDC (8,989,146) 5,141,453 53,841,681 62,830,827
FEMI - - 5,885,357 5,885,357
FERC - - 5,773,835 5,773,835
Golforce, Inc. (1,050,000) - 4,045,794 5,095,794

(P7,617,112) P7,705,823  P185,188,212 P192,805,324

These advances are unsecured, unguaranteed, noninterest bearing and have no definite repayment
terms. These advances are settled through cash payment and through offsetting.

The Club offset advances from related parties against trade receivables amounting to P10,834,584
and P2,174,919 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

In addition, certain expenses of the Club amounting to P2,422,034 and P5,530,904 in 2024 and
2023, respectively, were paid by FEUDC and GERI directly to suppliers. Unpaid amount as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to 112,003,832 and P118,570,944, respectively, is
included under *Advances from related parties”™ in the statements of financial position,

The reconciliation on the changes in the Club’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and noncash changes for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as
follows:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year P192,805,324 P185,099,501

Payments (20,873,730) -
MNoncash changes — Accounts receivable offsetting

Expenses paid by related parties directly to the suppliers 2,422,034 5,530,904

Offsetting of advances from related parties to receivables 10,834,584 2,174,919

Balance at end of year P185,188,212 P192,805,324

Changes from financing cash flows pertain to net of advances and payments during the year.
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b. Management fees

In 2017, the Club and GERI entered into an agreement whereby the latter shall provide technical
guidance in terms of management and supervision of the Club’s operations. There were no
management fees incurred in 2024, 2023 and 2022, As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Club
has unpaid balance of P7,815.444, which is included in accrued expenses under “Irade and other
payables” in the statements of financial position (see Note 10).

In 2019, the Club and FEUDC entered into an agreement whereby the latter shall provide
strategies, directions and guidelines and help manage, supervise, operate, administer and market
the villa hotel units of the Club and all of its attendants and facilities. There were no management
fees incurred in 2024, 2023 and 2022. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Club has unpaid
management fees of 40,059,634, inclusive of VAT which is included in accrued expenses under
“Trade and other payables” in the statements of financial position (see Note 10) .

¢, Deposit for future stock subscription

In 2016, certain villa (Building 7a) with carrying amount of P307,401,347 was transferred by
GEPI to the Club in exchange for shares of stock. Additional cost amounting to P1,506,093 was
incurred in 2017.

In 2019, “Deposit for future stock subscription™ amounting to P30 8,907,440 was reclassified from
current liability to equity as the turnover document was already executed on April 10,2019. GEPI
is entitled to 1,116 common shares of the Club with 105 class C-1 shares, 38 class C-2 shares and
973 class D shares in exchange for the transfer and conveyance of Building 7a with a cost of
P308,907,440. In the agreement, the Club shall issue the Class C-1 and C-2 shares only after
GEPI shall have transferred and fully exhausted (to its buyers) all its outstanding and issued Class
C-1 and C-2 shares, but not to exceed 105 Class C-1 and 38 Class C-2 shares, with the remainder
(973 shares) to be issued with Class D shares.

A total of 1,116 common shares of the Club were issued at a price of P276,799 (see Note 14).

d.  Cost for the use of FEUDC villa

The Club was billed by FEUDC for the use of its villas by guests who booked rooms with the
Club. Total cost and charges billed amounted to 23,332,950 in 2024, P3,214,012 in 2023 and nil
in 2022 and is included under “Direct costs” in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note

16). As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Club has unpaid amount for room charges billed by
FEUDC amounting to 10,834,583 and P2,174,919, respectively (see Note 10).

Key Management Remuneration

Remuneration of the Club’s key management personnel are as follow:

2024 2023 2022

Short-term employee benefits 24,605,620 $22,322,497 P12,138,290
Post-employment benefits 2,890,401 2,093,827 1,511,524

27,496,021 P24.416,324 P13.649.814

There are no termination benefits, share-based payments and other long-term benefits paid or
payable to key management personnel as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:
2024 2023

Advance payments for:
Accommodation P39,592.330 P51,808.305
Rental from concessionaires — note 23 5,395,323 1,764,180
_ Membership dues 2,880,049 7,545,784

P47,867,702  P61,118,359

Accommodation paid in advance pertains to payments from customers for advance booking of
rooms while advance rental from concessionaires pertains to payments from concessionaires
covering the subsequent period rental,

Membership dues paid in advance represent advance collection of monthly membership dues
which are applied in the next financial year.

These advance payments will be recognized as revenues in the period when they are actually
earned, which is when the service is actually rendered.

LEASE LIABILITIES
The Club has the following long-term lease agreements as lessee:
a. Satellite office in Pasig City

The Club entered into a lease agreement for its satellite office located in Pasig City for a
period of three years in 2020. In 2024, the lease agreement was renewed until July 2027,

In 2018, the Club leased an additional floor for its office space for a period of three years.
The lease agreement was renewed for another three years in 2021 and 2024,

b. Welcome Center

The Club entered into a lease agreement for the Welcome Center, a facility of the Club where
tourists wait for the boat that will take them to the Island of Boracay, located in Caticlan,
Malay, Aklan. The premises leased by the Club, with an area of 5,815 square meters, are
owned by two individuals.
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Under the terms and conditions of the agreement, the Club shall lease the premises for a
period of six years commencing from December 1, 2022. In consideration for the use and
occupancy of the said premise, the Club agreed to pay monthly rental of P140,710, net of
withholding tax and VAT, with 5% escalation rate per annum. The lease may be renewed or
extended as mutually agreed upon by both parties. The lessee, at its option, may pre-terminate
the lease in the event that the lessee is permanently deprived of the peaceful use, possession
and enjoyment of the leased premises by reason of force majeure. Security deposit related to
the lease agreement amounted to P200,000 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and is included
under “Security deposit” in the statements of financial position (see Note 10).

Land with an area of 2,792 sq.m.

Under the terms and conditions of the agreement, the Club shall lease the premises for a
period of six years commencing from December 22, 2022. In consideration for the use and
occupancy of the said premise, the Club agreed to pay monthly rental of P129,453, net of
VAT and other taxes, with 5% escalation rate per annum. The lease may be renewed or
extended as mutually agreed upon by both parties. The lessee, at its option, may pre-terminate
the lease in the event that the lessee is permanently deprived of the peaceful use, possession
and enjoyment of the leased premises by reason of force majeure. Security deposit related to
the lease agreement amounted to P184,000 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and is included
under “Security deposit” in the statements of financial position (see Note 10).

The details of the lease liabilities as of December 31 follow;

2024 2023
Future PV of Future PV of
MLP MLP MLP MLP
Mot later than one year 10,567,949 79,172,084 P7,795,614 P6,795.439
Later than one year but not later
than five vears 19,972,620 18,388,628 16,053,026 14,107,294
Total 30,540,569 27,560,712 23,848,640 20,902,733
Amount representing interest expense (2,979,.857) - (2,945,907) -
Present value of minimum lease payments
(MLP) $27.560,712  P27.560,712 P20,902,733 $20,902,733
The roll-forward of lease liabilities as at December 31 is as follows:
2024 2023
As at January 1 20,902,733 126,852,653
Additions (renewal/ adjustment of lease) 14,683,448 941,969
Interest expense — note 19 1,739,998 1,265,015
_Payments (9,765,467) (8,156,904)
As at December 31 27,560,712 20,902,733
Less: current portion 0,172,084 6,795,439
Mongurrent portion P15.388.628 P14.107.294
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, unpaid interest on lease liabilities amounted to P155.892 and
P530,404, respectively, and is included as accrued expenses under “Trade and other payables”

(see Note 10).

Right-of-use assets (net)

The reconciliation as at December 31 is as follows:

December 31, 2024

Right-of-use  Right-of-use
of land of building Total
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2024 P18,839,388 £11,709,732  P30,549,120
Additions — renewal of lease = 14,683,448 14.683.448
Write-off — end of lease term - (11,709,732)  (11,709,732)
Balance, December 31, 2024 18,839,388 14,683,448 33,522,836
Accumulated amortization
Balance, January 1, 2024 3,139,898 11,158,571 14,298,469
Amortization 3,139,898 4,322,977 7,462,875
Write-off —end of lease term - (11,709,732)  (11,709,732)
Balance, December 31, 2024 6,279,796 3,771,816 10,051,612
Carrying amount, December 31,2024 12,559,592 P10,911,632  P23,471,224
December 31, 2023
Right-of-use Right-of-use
of land of building Total
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2023 P17.897,419 P11,709,732  P29,607,151
Additions — adjustment of lease 941,969 - 941.969
Balance, December 31, 2023 18,830,388 11,709,732 30,549,120
Accumulated amortization
Balance, January 1, 2023 - 8,192,726 8,192,726
Amortization 3,139,898 2,965,845 6,105,743
Balance, December 31, 2023 3,139,898 11,158,571 14,208,469
“Carrying amount, December 31, 2023 P15,699,490 PS51,161 _ P16,250.651
The amortization of right-of-use assets is allocated as follows:
2024 2023 2022
Other direct cost —note 16 $3,139.898 3,139,898 P-
General and administrative expenses —
note 18 4,322,977 2,965,845 3,903,245
77,462,875 P6,105,743 P3.,903,245
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MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Class “A”, “B” and “C" common shares may be sold to an individual, corporation, partnership.
or association, irrespective of nationality. Every registered owner of one (1) common share shall
be entitled to one (1) membership in the Club and subject to the Club’s rules and regulations and
shall be entitled to the use of bedroom suite(s) in the Club’s lodging facilities for a period of time
during certain months of the year.

For Class “A" shares. the bedroom suite(s) in the Club’s lodging facilities may be used for a total
of two weeks annually during the months of March, April and May.

Class “A1" is entitled to the use of one (1) bedroom suite
Class “A2" is entitled to the use of two (2) bedroom suites
Class “A3" is entitled to the use of three (3) bedroom suites

For Class “B” shares. the bedroom suite(s) in the Club’s lodging facilities may be used for a total
of two weeks annually during the months of October, November, December, January and
February.

Class “B1" is entitled to the use of one (1) bedroom suite
Class “B2" is entitled to the use of two (2) bedroom suites
Class “B3" is entitled to the use of three (3) bedroom suites

For Class “C” shares, the bedroom suite(s) in the Club’s lodging facilities may be used for a total
of two weeks annually during the months of June, July, August and September.

Class “C1" is entitled to the use of one (1) bedroom suite
Class “C2" is entitled to the use of two (2) bedroom suites
Class “C3" is entitled to the use of three (3) bedroom suites

Class “D” common shares may be sold to any individual, corporation or a partnership irrespective
of nationality or citizenship. Every registered owner of Class “D” common shares shall be entitled
to one (1) membership in the Club and, subject to the Club’s rules and regulations, shall be entitled
to the use of the golf and country club facilities all year round but is not entitled to any lodging

rights,

Except for the five (5) Founders® shares, voting rights of all the other classes of the shares are
suspended. The Founders' shares shall have the exclusive right to vote and be voted for in the
election of directors for a period of five (5) years from the date of approval by the SEC of the
Amended Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, the voting rights of all the common shares shall
be revived, thus, putting them on equal footing in all respects with the Founders® shares.

The Founders® shares shall have the same rights as a Class A-3 common share. In addition, only
holders of Founders shares may vote at any meeting of the members and be elected to the BOD
of the Corporation for a period of five (5) years from the date of approval by the SEC of the
amended Articles of Incorporation.
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No transfer of shares of stock of the Club, which will reduce the stock ownership of Filipino
citizens to less than the minimum percentage of the outstanding capital stock required by law to
be owned by Filipino citizens, shall be allowed or permitted to be recorded in the books of the
Club. Any transfer made in violation hereof shall be null and void and shall not be registrable in
the books of the Club.

The authorized number of shares based on the Amended Articles of Incorporation and the number
of outstanding shares as at December 31 are as follow:

Authorized Outstanding

2024 2023 2024 2023
Class A-1 232 shares 232 shares 232 shares 232 shares
Class A-2 4219 shares 429 shares 429 shares 429 shares
Class A-3 268 shares 268 shares 268 shares 268 shares
Class B-1 547 shares 547 shares 547 shares 547 shares
Class B-2 596 shares 596 shares 596 shares 596 shares
Class B-3 286 shares 286 shares 286 shares 286 sharss
Class C-1 1,302 shares 1,302 shares 1,302 shares 1,302 shares
Class C-2 956 shares 956 shares 956 shares 056 shares
Class C-3 384 shares 384 shares 384 shares 384 shares
Class D 20,920 shares 20,920 shares 14,699 shares 14,699 shares

25,920 shares 25,920 shares 19,699 shares 19,699 shares

Of the total 19,699 issued and outstanding shares in 2024 and 2023, five (5) shares are Founders’
ghares.

Based on the Certificate of Permit to Offer Securities issued on April 25, 1996, the offered shares
are as follow:

Nao. of shares

Class A-1 1,500 shares
Class A-2 1,500 shares
Class A-3 600 shares
Class B-1 860 shares
Class B-2 860 shares
Class B-3 760 shares
Class C-1 960 shares
Class C-2 960 shares
Class C-3 640 shares
8,640 shares

Under the Amended Registration Statement filed in 2013, the Club will only be offering 5,000
shares of various classes for sale to the public. The 5,000 shares include the 4,658 shares already
covered by the previously issued Permit to Sell of 8,640 shares and an additional 342 Class “C-
1" shares which is the subject of registration under the Amended Registration Statement to
augment the 960 Class “C-17 shares previously approved for public offering.
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Total Shares per  Shares to be offered Subject for

Class Permit to Sell for sale Registration
Class A-1 1,500 shares 232 shares -
Class A-2 1,500 shares 429 shares -
Class A-3 600 shares 268 shares -
Class B-1 860 shares 547 shares -
Class B-2 860 shares 596 shares -
Class B-3 760 shares 286 shares -
Class C-1 960 shares 060 shares 342 shares
Class C-2 960 shares 956 shares =
Class C-3 640 shares 384 shares =
8,640 shares 4,658 shares 342 shares

To date, of the 5,000 shares, 3,940 shares have been issued by the Club to the Developer and
consequently sold to the public under a secondary offering as approved by the SEC. The 3,940
shares are broken down as follow:

Mo. of shares

Class A-1 232 shares
Class A-2 286 shares
Class A-3 255 shares
Class B-1 401 shares
Class B-2 409 shares
Class B-3 123 shares
Class C-1 1,178 shares
Class C-2 872 shares
Class C-3 184 shares

3.940 shares

The amount of proprietary membership and additional paid-in capital recognized in the statements

of changes in member’s equity as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

Outstanding and ~ Stated Proprietary Additional
issued shares value membership paid-in capital Amount
6,480 P1OO P648,000 P- P648,000
4,591 100 459,100 1,270,783,088 1,271,242,188
5,429 100 542,900 1,502,589,500 1,503,132,400
2,083 100 208,300 576,549,708 576,758,008
1,116 100 111,600 308,795,840 308.907.440
19,699 P1,969.900 P3,658.718,136 P3,660,688,036
REVENUES

The Club’s revenue from villa operations is derived from rental of villas to non-members and
members, who exceeded the allowed number of guests and days of stay granted to them as

members,
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Revenue from golf operations and other activities is generated from fees charged by the Club for
the use of golf course and other facilities. Details are as follow:

2024 2023 2022
Green fees P28,892,705 P28,573,178 P11,908,750
Golf operations:
Golf cart 7,451,964 5,774,867 2,426,987
Golf set 2,162,349 1,821,518 742,277
Others 93,071 56,161 47,500
Transfer fee 2,250,000 2,526,786 870,536
Land and sea transfer 175,736 352,723 391,080
Rental from concessionaires
—note 23 5,983,520 - 150,000
Access fees - - 2,678
Other activities:
Horseback riding 335,089 391,107 172411
Breakage and losses charged to
customers 614,882 347,566 205,180
Others 7.941,886 5,995,083 1,943,115

P55,901,202 P45,838.980  P18,950514

Green fees pertain to fees paid by guests to the Club for the use of the golf course.

Access fees pertain to the fees paid by guests of other resorts for the use of the Club’s Welcome
Center facility to access the island.

Others arise from zipline, proshop sales, ID card, billiards, table tennis, babysitting, post cards,
virtual golf, steam bath, jacuzzi, laundry, parking fee, access fee for swimming pool and other
penalties charged to customers.

The Club determines that income from Villa operations, Membership dues and Golf and other
activities shall be recognized over time as the services are being rendered to the customers while
income from food and beverage shall be recognized at a point in time upon delivery and billing
to customers.

Reclassification

In 2024, the Club reclassified revenue from breakfast from “Food and beverage™ to *Villa
operations” for proper presentation. Comparative figures in 2023 and 2022 were also
reclassified for consistency and comparability.

DIRECT COSTS

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Cost of service 735,761,882 P15,027,993 $70,204
Cost of sales 64,787,126 50,473,808 31,619,428
Other direct costs 402,343,765 327.932,719 189,704,482

502,892,773 P402,434,520 P221,394,114
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Cost of sales is composed of cost of food and beverage.
Cost of service consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Room and other charges —note 11 $23,332,950 P3,214,012 P-
Rent — note 23 12,410,450 11,806,106 -
Others 18,482 7.875 70,204
P35,761,882 P15,027,993 #70,204

Room and other charges pertain to billings from FEUDC for the use of its villas by the guests
who booked rooms with the Club (see Note 11).

Rent expense pertains to rental fees equivalent to 20% of revenue, net of VAT, generated from

operations of Paseo Villas paid to its non-member unit owners (see Note 23).

Other direct costs consist of:

2024 2023 2022
Security and janitorial services 91,987,126 P34,427.918 P11,473,092
Power, light and water 75,796,732 64,907,058 35,173,724
Salaries, wages and benefits — note 20 61,082,557 44,774,614 30,090,165

Depreciation and amortization
—notes 9 and 13 57,287,427 100,208,540 68,422,275
Supplies 50,647,884 23,616,024 10,543,995
Laundry 23,589,615 25,469,735 12,181,071
Repairs and maintenance 22,313,256 18,732,096 9,717.396
Taxes and licenses 10.354.311 7.884.776 6,625,086
Fees and dues 2,609,644 3,251,701 2,049,710
(Gas and oil 1,801,182 1,801,064 -
Insurance 1,766,979 797,873 527,468
Rent — note 23 696,606 - 1,685,213
Professional fees 301,597 314,432 283.846
Freight and delivery 140,242 827.713 415,946
Communication 70,015 08,938 67,481
Transportation and travel 66,100 8,280 6,735
Advertising and promation - 52,800 36.393
Miscellaneous 1,832,492 T57.3587 404,886
P402,343,765  P327,932,719 _ PI189,704,482

Security and janitorial in 2024 includes the manpower cost outsourced by the Club for repairs and

repainting of villas.

Supplies in 2024 includes the cost for the change of supplies for some villas.

Repairs and maintenance pertain to the cost related to maintenance of villas and golf course.
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SELLING EXPENSES

This account pertains to payments for advertising and promotions for magazine features, online
travel agencies for hotel bookings made by Club’s guests, and commission related to hotel
revenue and food and beverage. Advertising and promotions amounted to P40,977.811,

P38,164,670 and P14,851,039 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Salaries, wages and benefits — note 20 P55,204,894 P41,107,504 P32,281.668
Supplies 12,039,620 13,732,785 3,245,212
Depreciation and amortization
~notes 9 and 13 7,360,787 5,686,021 6,783,008
(as and oil 6,776,120 5,672,269 4,934 331
Professional fees — note 1] 3,867,508 2,715,008 1,928,785
Freight and delivery 2,867,662 1,512,550 363,497
Fees and dues 2,177,988 2,377,730 1,543,480
Security services 2,061,966 1,660,602 1,593,925
Insurance 1,867,706 1,744,600 1,018,656
Transportation and travel 1,593,931 701,727 312,809
Representation and entertainment 1,166,397 1,167,725 942,113
Taxes and licenses 1,104,106 4 085,087 4,755,000
Printing and reproduction 1,074,508 576,979 212,721
Light and water 666,871 825,716 1,050,562
Rent — note 23 413,821 560,616 262,000
Communication 326,441 760,453 485,501
Repairs and maintenance 101,496 100,979 962,271
Seminars and training 13,921 33,158 6,182
Miscellaneous 3,442,329 3,520,566 3,217,612

P104,828,072 P88,542,675 P65,809,333

Miscellaneous includes input VAT attributable to VAT exempt transactions which are expensed
during the year.

OTHER CHARGES (NET)

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Bank charges P13,162,315 P14,728,178 P7.043,355
Interest expense — note 13 1,739,998 1,265,015 147,816
Interest income — note 6 (11,220,197} (5,441,736) (73,839)
Gain on reversal of liabilities — note 10 - (342,264) -

3,682,116 P10,209,193 $7.117,332

Bank charges include service charges of bank for credit card payments of customers.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Salaries and employee benefits expense

Expenses recognized for salaries, wages and benefits under cost and expenses are presented
below:

2024 2023 2022

Short-term benefits P112,353,461 P&1,868,990 P55,245,278
Post-employment benefits 4,633,990 4,013,128 7,126,555

P116,987.451 £85,882,118  P62,371,833

Post-employment benefits

The Club has an unfunded, defined benefit retirement plan computed based on the projected unit
credit method. The Club’s latest actuarial valuation report was December 31, 2024. The
computation of retirement benefit costs is based on Republic Act (R.A.)No. 7641, Retirement Law.

The retirement benefits expense recognized in the statements of comprehensive income is as
follows:

2024 2023 2022
Current service cost 72,409,284 P1,982,141 P4,857,103
Interest cost 2,224,706 2,030,987 2,269,452
74,633,990 P4,013,128 P7,126,555
The retirement benefits expense is allocated as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Direct costs — note 16 2,550,997 2,190,335 P3,734,274

General and administrative expenses
—note 18 2,082,993 1,622,793 3,392,281
4,633,990 £4.013,128 P7,126,555

The remeasurement loss (gain) recognized in other comprehensive income is as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Actuarial loss (gain) due to:
Experience adjustments P6,455.482 P1,661,594 (P3,045,744)
Changes in financial assumptions 9.475.613 2,114,518  (19,825,232)
£15,931.095 $3,776,112  (P22,870,976)

Remeasurement loss (gain) is presented in other comprehensive income, net of tax of P3,982,774
in 2024, P944,028 in 2023, and P5,717,744 in 2022.
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The movements in remeasurement gain on retirement benefits as of December 31 are as follow:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year (P19,741,019) (P22.573,103)
Remeasurement loss on retirement

benefits for the year, net of tax 11,948,321 2,832,084

Balance at end of year (P7,792,698) (P19.741.019)

The movements in the retirement benefits obligation recognized in the statements of financial
position are as follow:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P33,454,.223 P26,038,289
Retirement benefits expense 4,633,990 4,013,128
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits 15,931,095 3,776,112
Retirement benefits paid (763.165) (373,306)
Balance at end of year P53,256,143 P33,454,223

The movements in the present value of the retirement benefits obligation are as follow:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year P33,454,223  P26,038,289
Current service cost 2,224,706 1,982,141
Interest cost 2,409,284 2,030,987
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits 15,931,095 3,776,112
Benefits paid (763,165) (373,306)
Balance at end of year 53,256,143 P33,454,223

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follow:

2024 2023

Discount rate 5.90% 6.65%
Expected salary increase 3.00% 1.00%

Ri ising from irement Pl

The Club has an unfunded retirement plan of P53,256,143 and P33,454,223 as at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively. While there is no minimum required funding, the amount without
fund may expose the Club to cash flow risk for 10-15 years when a significant number of employees
are expected to retire.

Maturity Profile of Undiscounted Benefit Payments

The weighted average duration of the Club’s defined benefit abligation is 19 years and 18 years as
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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The maturity analysis on the Club’s undiscounted benefit payments are as follow:
December 31, 2024
Mare than
| year Morethan! Morethan5  More than 10 15 to 20 Mare than
and less to 5 vears to 10 years to |5 vears years 20 years

Normal retirement  #2,659,888 P11,945.650 P23,535,372 P56,933,131 P86,377.368  P319,737.469

December 31, 2023

More than
lyear Morethan1 Morethan5  More than 10 150 20 More than
and less to 5 years to 10 years to 15 vears YEears 20 years

Normal retirement  P1,418,155  $9.094,513  P19,910,041 P38,187,490 P37.671,524 P156,554.274

Principal Actuarial Assumption Sensitivity

The following illustrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in each key assumption,
with all other variables held constant, of the Club’s retirement benefits obligation. The sensitivity
analysis is prepared assuming the fair value of asset does not vary during the period. A +/-1% and
+/-0.5% increase or decrease in salary increase and discount rate, respectively, is used when
reporting this risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in salary increase and discount rate.

The impact on the Club’s retirement benefits obligation as at December 31, 2024 which affects the
Club’s cash flow is as follows:

Increase Increase (decrease) on
(decrease) Present value of obligation retirement benefits obligation
Discount rate +0.5% P51,111,283 (P2,144,860)
-0.5% 55,626,957 2,370,814

Salary increase +1% 58,197,975 4,941 832
-1% 49,184,461 (4.071,682)

Regulatory Framework in which the Retirement Obligation Operates

In accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, the Club is required to pay eligible e:mplﬂyees
at least the minimum regulatory benefit upon retirement, subject to age and service requirements.

Responsibilities of Trustees
Since the Club does not have a formal, trusteed retirement plan, there are no trustees yet.
Plan Amendments, Curtailments or Setil

There was no plan amendment, curtailment or settlement recognized for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:
2024 2023 2022
Current 1,456,659 £2,602,388 PT62.614
Deferred (21,789,651) 4,814,559  (4,226,912)
(P20,332,992) P7,416,947  (P3,464,298)

The reconciliation of pretax income (loss) computed at the applicable statutory tax rate to income

tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Income (loss) before income tax (P72,194,411) P30,821,273  (P13,300,791)
Tax at statutory tax rate at 25% (18,048,603) 7,705,318 (3,325,198)
Add (deduct) tax effects oft
Expenses allocated to tax — exempt
membership dues 8,034,592 9,302,070 7,170,352
Depreciation expense — right-of-use
assets 1,865,719 1,526,436 975,811
Mondeductible taxes and licenses - £93,288 874,908
Nondeductible interest expense 435,000 316,254 36,954
Income subjected to final tax (2,805,049) (1,360.434) (18.,459)
Rent expense for long-term leases (2,441,367) (2,062,917) (696.644)
Tax-exempt membership dues (7,373,284) (8,703.068) (8,482,022)
(P20,332,992) $7,416.947  (P3,464,298)
The details of deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follow:
2024 2023
NOLCO P68,829,306  P47,317,789
Retirement benefits obligation™® 13,314,035 8,363,556
Contract liabilities 11,246,914 13,393,144
MCIT 4,821,661 3,365,002
Accrual for management fees and advertising 3,218,903 3,218,903
Allowance for ECL 754,083 754,683
P102,185,502 76,413,077

*includes deferred tax lability on remeasurement gain under Other eomprehensive income amounting to P2.597,366

and P6,580,339 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

The Club subjected to income tax those advance payments for accommodation and rental from
concessionaires that were received from customers amounting to nil and $1,940,731 in 2024 and

2023, respectively.
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MCIT
The details of MCIT at December 31 are as follow:
Year incurred Amount Addition Expired Balance Year of Expiry
2022 P762.614 - P- P762.614 2025
2023 2,602,388 - - 2,602,388 2026
2024 1,456,659 - 1,456,659 2027
P3,365,002 P1,456,659 P- P4,821,661
NOLCO
Year Year of
incurred expiry Amount Additions Applied Expired Balance
2020 2025 $£123,033,877 P- P35,248,344 P- P87,785,533
2021 2026 97,431,141 - - - 97,431,141
2022 2025 4,054,486 - - - 4,054,486
2024 2027 - 86,046,067 - - 86,046,067
P224,519.504 186,046,067 P35,248.344 -  P275317,227

On September 30, 2020, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation (RR)
No. 25-2020 implementing Section 4(bbbb) of “Bayanihan to Recover As One Act” which states
that NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a
deduction from gross income for the next five consecutive taxable years immediately following
the vear of such loss.

LEGAL MATTERS

The Club is a party to other lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. However,
the Club’s management and legal counsel believe that the eventual liabilities under these lawsuits
or claims will not have a material effect on the Club’s financial statements. Accordingly, no
provision for probable losses arising from said lawsuits and claims have been recognized in the
financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

OPERATING LEASES
The Club’s operating leases are as follow:
Club as lessee

a. Paseo Villas

In 2012, the Club entered into an agreement with the unit owners of Paseo Villas to manage
and enroll their units in hotel pool. The agreement shall be effective for a period of 15 years
commencing on the date of signing of the agreement, automatically renewable for another 15
years at the end of each term, unless terminated by either party. Rental is equivalent to 20%
of revenues, net of VAT, other charges and taxes.
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b. Equipment

The Club entered into a short-term lease agreement with a third party for the use of equipment
for the Club’s operation. In consideration of the lease, the Club agreed to pay monthly rental
of P23,492, net of VAT.

c. Welcome Center

The Club entered into a lease agreement for the Welcome Center, a facility of the Club where
tourists wait for the boat that will take them to the Island of Boracay, located in Caticlan,
Malay, Aklan. The premises leased by the Club, with an area of 5,815 square meters, are
owned by two individuals.

Land with an area of 3,023 sq.m.

Under the terms and conditions of the agreement, the Club shall lease the premises for a
period of six years commencing from August 1, 2015. Upon its expiration in 2021, the Club
and the lessor mutually agreed to renew the lease agreement for a period of one year
commencing from August 1, 2021, The lease was renewed for a period of six years
commencing from December 1, 2022 (see Note 13).

Land with an area of 2,792 sq.m.

Under the terms and conditions of the agreement, the Club shall lease the premises for a
period of six years commencing from September 22, 2015. Upon its expiration in 2021, the
Club and the lessor mutually agreed to renew the lease agreement for a period of one year
commencing from September 22, 2021, The lease was renewed for a period of six years
commencing from December 22, 2022 (see Note 13),

Rent expense related to these lease agreements are allocated as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Direct cost — note 16 696,606 - 1,685,213
General and administrative

expenses —note 18 413,821 560,616 262,000

1,110,427 P560.616 P1,947.213

Rental expense for the use of Paseo Villas amounted to 12,410,450 in 2024, P1 1,806,106 in
2023 and nil in 2022, included in cost of service under “Direct cost” (see Note 16). As at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 the unpaid amount to unit owners of Paseo Villas amounted to
P17,260,780 and P16,768,012, respectively, is included in trade payables under “Trade and other

payables” (see Note 10).

The Club has an accrued rental expense amounting to 2,621,000 and P459,366 as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (see Note 10).
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Club as lessor

The Club entered into an agreement with third party concessionaires whereby the concessionaires
will set up and operate stores and other facilities inside the Club for a term of not more than one
year. The agreements are renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties. The agreement
provides that the concessionaires shall pay a fixed monthly rent plus a certain percentage of their
monthly gross sales. Security deposit equivalent to two-month of the fixed monthly fees was paid
by each concessionaire as required under the contract.

Starting April 2020, there were no rentals received from its third-party concessionaires since the
Club's operations have been temporarily closed due to the pandemic. This arrangement will apply
until such time when business conditions improve.

Refundable deposits as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to P1,737,385, included under
“Trade and other payables” in the statements of financial position (see Note 10). Advance
payment received from concessionaires as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounting to
£5,395,323 and P1,764,180, respectively, is included under “Contract liabilities” in the statements
of financial position (see Note 12).

Rental from concessionaires amounting to #5,983,520, nil and P150,000 in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, is included under “Golf operations and other activities” in the statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 15).

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Club is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and
financing activities. The Club’s risk management is coordinated in close cooperation with the
BOD and focuses on actively securing the Club’s short-to medium-term cash flows by minimizing
the exposure to financial markets.

The Club does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes, nor
does it write options. The financial risks to which the Club is exposed are as follow:

fa) Foreign Currency Risk

The Club has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its transactions are
denominated in Philippine peso.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Club will incur a loss from customers or counterparties that fail
to discharge their contractual obligations. The Club manages credit risk by setting limits on
the amount of risk the Club is willing to accept from counterparties and by monitoring
exposures in relation to such limits. The Club’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash,
receivables and other noncurrent assets. The Club reviews the recoverable amount of each
trade debt and debt instrument on an individual basis at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate loss allowance is made for irrecoverable amounts.
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For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with high credit ratings
are accepted. For its receivables, the balances are actively monitored on an ongoing basis by
taking into account the financial position, past collection experience and other factors to

avoid significant concentrations of credit risk.

Maximum credit risk exposure

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Club as at December 31,

2024 and 2023:
December 31, 2024
Gross
Basis of carrying Loss  Netcarrying
ECL amount allowance amount
Cash and cash equivalents (a) 293,768,506 P-  P293,768,5006
Trade and other receivables (b} Lifetime
(net)* ECL 34,526,023 3,018,733 31,507,290
Security deposit (c) 560,049 - 560,049
P328,854.578 13,018,733 P325,835,845
*Except advances to officers and employees af P414,612
December 31, 2023
Basis of Gross carrying Loss Net carrying
ECL amount  allowance amount
Cash and cash equivalents (a) P331,166,051 B-  P331,166,051
Trade and other receivables {(b) Lifetime
(net)* ECL 26,186,298 3,018,733 23,167,565
Security deposit (c) 560,049 - 560,049

£357,912,398 P3,018,733

£354,893,665

*Except advances 1o officers and employees of P466,23%

(a) Cash and cash equivalents are assessed to have low credit risk at each reporting period.
These are held by reputable banking institutions,

(b) For trade and other receivables, the Club has applied the simplified approach to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECLs. The Club determines the ECLs based on historical
credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate
to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.

(c) The expected impairment loss on other noncurrent asset is immaterial: hence, no ECL is

recognized.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
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The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of customers over a period of
twenty-four (24) months before December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. In 2024 and 2023, the Club’s ECL rate is
zero for accounts that are current and those | to 60 days past due because there has been no
experience of loss or default from hotel booking agents, credit cards and other contracting
parties. The provision matrix to compute ECL on its trade and other receivables considers
the historical observed default rates of hotel booking agents, financial institution for credit
card transactions and concessionaires, adjusted for forward-looking estimates and disregards
the loss experience on certain transactions in the past which is not applicable to the Club’s
current operations.

The loss allowance for trade and other receivables is determined as follows:

December 31, 2024

No. of days past due
Less than 30 3l daystol
Current days vear Over 1 year Total
Gross carrying
amount® P1,192,925 P26,590,769  P3,723,596  P3,018,733 P34,526,023
Lifetime ECL P- P-  P3.018,733  P3,018,733
*Excluding advances to officers and employees amounting ra P414,612
December 31, 2023
No. of days past due
Lessthan 30 31 daysto |
Current days year  Over 1 year Total
Gross carrying
amount® P1,537,617 P434,068 P21,195,880 P3,018,733 £26,186,298
Lifetime ECL P- P- P-  P3,018,733 P3.018,733
*Excluding advances to afficers and employees amounting to P466,239
Trade and other receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Club and if past due for
more than one (1) year.
The table below shows the aging analysis of cash, trade and other receivables and other
noncurrent assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023:
December 31, 2024
Trade and
Cash and cash other Security
equivalents receivables® deposit Total
Neither past due nor impaired P193,768,506 £1,192,925 P560,049 P295,521,480
Past due but not impaired
Less than 30 da}'sp - 26,590,769 - 26,590,769
30 days and over - 3,713,596 - 3,723,596
Impaired 3,018,733 - 3,018,733

P293,768,506  P34,526,023 P560,049 P328,854,578

*Except advances to afficers and employees of P4I4.612
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Decemberd1, 2023
Trade and
Cash and cash other Security
equivalents receivables* depaosit Total
Neither past due nor impaired P331,166,051 P1,537,617 P560,049 P333,263,717
Past due but not impaired
Less than 30 days - 434,068 - 434,068
30 days and over - 21,195,880 - 21,195,880
Impaired - 3,018,733 - 3,018,733

P331,166,051 P26,186,298 P560,049 P357,912,398

*Except advances to officers and employees of P4645,239
Credit quality of financial assets
i. Neither past due nor impaired

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Trade and other receivables include receivables in the ordinary course of business and
advances to related party. Credit risk is reduced to an acceptable low level through
liguidation within the allowed number of days set in accordance with the Club’s policy.

ii. Past due but not impaired

Financial assets past due but not impaired consist of trade and other receivables not
collected within the credit term policy of the Club. These receivables are not considered in
default as the nonpayment is not from financial difficulty of the borrower.

iii. Past due and impaired

Trade and other receivables that are impaired amounting to P3,018,733 as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 are those long outstanding trade and other receivables that have not been
collected despite sending demand letters and for which the Club believes that the receivables
may not be collected. Full provision has been recognized for such receivables.

The credit risk for security deposit and cash bond is considered negligible as the amount is
insignificant.

fe) Liguidity Risk

The Club has significant exposure to liquidity risk because of significant payables and
advances from related parties. Although these liabilities have no fixed terms and non-interest
bearing, the Club’s financial assets are not sufficient to pay off its financial liabilities. The
Club manages liquidity by identifying events that would trigger liquidity problems,
providing contingency plans, identifying potential sources of funds and monitoring
compliance with liquidity risk and policy.

The following requirements summarize the maturity profile of the financial liabilities based
on the remaining undiscounted contractual obligations as well as the analyses of the maturity
profile of the financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the contractual
commitments and liquidity.
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Financial assets

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period
to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected dates the assets will be realized.

Financial Habilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period
to the contractual maturity date.

December 31, 2024

>1 yearto 5§

Up to 1 year Years Total
Cash and cash equivalents #293,768,506 P- 293,768,506
Trade and other receivables (net)* 31,507,290 - 31,507,290
Security deposit - 560,049 560,049
Total financial assets 325,275,796 560,049 P325,835,845
Trade and other payables** 429,584,493 . 429,584,493
Advances from related parties 185,188,212 - 185,188,212
Lease liabilities 9,172,084 18,388,628 27,560,712
Total financial liabilities 623,944,789 18,388,628 642,333,417

(P298,668,993) (P17.828,579) (P316,497,572)

* Excluding advances to afficers and employees amounting 1o P414.612
e E.m'ua'fﬂs Pﬂ}'ﬂbh’ Io gmrnmnf IIEE-FT("!:EE andpraw'.ﬂan I I!ilIi.l'il'.fil'ﬂ,'é,‘r o Fl2. 954,33‘.?

December 31, 2023
>] yearto 5

Up to 1 year years Total
Cash and cash equivalents P331,166,051 P~ B331,166,051
Trade and other receivables (net)* 23,167,565 - 23,167,565
Security deposit : 560,049 560,049
Total financial assets 354,333,616 560,040 354,893,665
Trade and other payables** 403,975,986 - 403,975,986
Advances from related parties 192,805,324 - 192,805,324
Lease liabilities 6,795,439 14,107,294 20,902,733
Total financial liabilities 603,576,749 14,107,294 617,684,043

(P249.243,133) (P13,547,245) (P262,790,378)

* Excluding advances 1o afficers and employees amounting ta P166,239
*¥ Excluding payable to government agencies and provisian amounting to P11,132,119

Trade and other payables to third parties are managed through cash advances from related
parties.
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(d) Capital Risk Objective and Management

The Club’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to sustain its operations and that the members will
be able to enjoy the benefits provided by the Club. At present and as a result of losses incurred
in prior years, the Club manages its capital through proper management of its cash flow and
in relation to its results of operations as well as its advances from related parties.

The Club monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of current liabilities to total
capital. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Club’s gearing ratio follows:

2024 2023
Total current liabilities (a) P684,767,378 P675.827,227
Tatal equity 3.267,816,725  3,331,629,252
Total current liabilities and equity (b) £3,952,584,103 $4,007,456,479
Gearing ratio (a/b) 17% 17%

The Club is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
FAIR VALUE INFORMATION
Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
The Club’s financial assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value but for which fair
value is disclosed include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other

payables, advances from related parties and current portion of lease liabilities.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair value due to their short-term duration.

The carrying amount and fair value of the categories of noncurrent financial assets presented in
the statements of financial position are shown below:

2024 2023
Carrying Carrying Fair value Valuation
values  Fair values values Fair values hierarchy technigque
Financial asset
Other noncurrent Discounted
assets P560,049 527,858 P560,049 P528.654 Level2 cash flow
Financial liability .
Lease liabilities — Discountec
noncurrent 18,388,628 P18,388,628 P14.107,294 14,107,294 Level2 cash flow

Other noncurrent assets, The fair values of the Club’s noncurrent assets are determined based on
the present value of estimated future cash flows using prevailing market rates. The discount rate
used was 6.10% and 5.94% as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Lease liabilities — noncurrent. The fair value of the lease liabilities approximates its carrying
amount as it is determined based on the present value of estimated future cash flows using
prevailing market rates. The discount rate used ranges from 2.18% to 6.79% as at December 31,
2024 and 2023.

There were no changes on the valuation techniques nor any transfers to other levels for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER RR NO. 15-2010

On December 28, 2010, the BIR issued RR No.15-2010, which amended certain provisions of RR
No. 21-2002 prescribing the manner of compliance with any documentary and/or procedural
requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements and
income tax returns. Section 2 of RR No. 21-2002 was further amended to include in the Notes to
Financial Statements information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the year
in addition to what is mandated by PFRS.

Presented below are the detailed information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued by
the Club during the taxable vear ended December 31, 2024:

al  Output VAT

2024

Revenues  Output VAT

Subject to 12% VAT

Green fee P28,892,705 P3.467,125
Food and beverage 10,453,627 1,254,435
Golf and other golf related income 479,106,209 57,492,745

518,452,541 62,214,305
Exempt sales 32,305,000

P550,757,541 P62,214,305

bl Input VAT

The movement in input VAT for the year ended December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Balance, January 1, 2024 198,110
Add: Current year’s domestic purchase/payment for:
Goods other than capital goods 10,613,788
Capital goods not subject to amortization 523,568
Services lodged under cost of sales and good sold 30,650,720
Amortized portion of input VAT 5,959,476
Total available input VAT 47,945,662
Less: Claims for:
Applied against output tax during the year (42,744,353)
Input VAT allocated to VAT Exempt (2,724,168)

Input VAT deferred for succeeding period
Balance, December 31, 2024 1,477,141
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¢} Documentary stamp tax

The Club paid documentary stamp taxes amounting to P273,100 in 2024 for insurance
purposes.

dl Taxes and licenses

The details of taxes and licenses account for the year ended December 31, 2024 follow:

2024
Real property tax P7.372,580
Business license 3,359,550
Filing fee 374,295
Documentary stamp tax 273,100
Vehicle registration 66,433
Miscellaneous 12.459
P11,458.417
el Withholding taxes
The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2024 follow:
2024
Withholding tax on compensation P3,857,877
Expanded withholding taxes 6.853,339
P10,711,216

) Deficiency tax assessment and tax cases

The Club has no tax cases under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in
courts or bodies outside the BIR.
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FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF and COUNTRY CLUB

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

DECEMBER 31, 2024

Report of Independent Audirors on Supplementary Schedules Filed Separately
from the Basic Financial Statements

(1) Supplementary Schedules to Financial Statements
{Annex 68-], SRC Rule 68)

Schedule

A
B

(o'

Gmmo

Financial Assets (Marketable Securities)

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Long-Term Debt

Indebtedness to Related Parties

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Capital Stock

(2) Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

(3) Map Showing the Relationship Berween and Among Related Parties

(4) List of Standards and Interpretations under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
as of December 31, 2024
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FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB

SCHEDULE B - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EM PLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)
DECEMBER 31, 2024
{Amaounts in Philippine Peses)

DEDUCTIONS ENDING BALANCE
L fBolance ot ; Amaunts Amoliyis Balan
Nome & Designation of Debtor |, mWED | Additions coleena | written ot/ Current | Not Current b :“d of
Reversed
Advances to Officers & Emplayees

Acnsta, Joceiyn 6,600.00 6,600.00 P 6,600.00
Acosta, Julle Ann 3,906.25 3,125.00 781.25 781.25
Agusila, lona {11,131.75) 3,623.61 {14,755.36) (14,755.36)
Alzgan, Venice [11,286.78) 695,71 {11,582.49) [11,982.49)
Albios, Mary Grace 711.00 711.00 711.00
Alvarez, Ruby 23,081.00 23,081.00 23,081.00
Anonueva, lomar - 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00
Candari, Robert - 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000,00
Baylon, Elmer 1,250.00 1,250.00 - -
Bayona, Frankie 2,250.00 2,250.00 2,250.00
Bela-ong, Joan 26,316.65 26,316.65 26,316.65
Belare, Cristi {11,132.19) £95.71 (11,827.90) {11,827.90)
Cabrales, Michael (12,523.57) £95.71 {13,219.28} (13,219.28)
Carbungco, Rona 54,754.58 54,754 58 54,754.58
Carrido, Nell 3,000.00 3,000.00 - -
Carino, Eric 21,567.69 21,567.69 21,567.65
Caring, Flordeliza 43,135.65 43,135.65 43,135,65
Casiple, Rodney 1,750.00 1,750.00 - .
Cubar, Suzette 8.,161.06 6,528.88 1,632.18 163218
Caanoy, Larry 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
De Leon, Ma: Berndardita 3638 36.38 0.00 .00
Delfinado, Rachells 14,067.87 14,067.87 14,067 .87
Belmindo, Anthoyny 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
Duran, Mario 48,508.16 26,000.00 22,521.20 51,986.96 51,98E.96
Eya, Ferdinand (0.00) 4,174.42 4,174.42 4174432
Gallardez, Jullan 1,250.00 1,250.00 - -
Garcia, Val lasep 500.00 500.00 500.00
Genoguin, Den Zebedes (22,663.02) 10,682.09 {33,345.11) (33,345.11)
Glodo, Alres 500.00 500.00 - -
Globe Telecom B34.96 834.96 B34.96
lbanez, Venjie 1,750.00 1,750.00 B -
Mabunay, Joven 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,750.00
Wiagabifin, Gall All 11,675.00 11,675.00 11,675.00
Modina, Elena 1,623.20 1,623.20 1,623.20
Morada, Gemma 500.C0 500.00 - .
Musni, Ryan S00.00 500.00 500.00
Philhealth Premium 385.70 385.70 {0,00) [0.00)
Pacunayen, Malen 10,875.00 10,875.00 . -
Pauig, Allean (11,132,09) 695.71 (11,827.80) (11,827.80)
Pantua, Marjorie 1,600.00 1,600.00 - -
Peracullo, Arthur 250,00 250,00 = =
Ramos, Jerome (11,132.09) 635,71 {11,827.80) (11,B27.80)
Saiceda, Francis 250,00 250.00 250,00
Santas, Jonjle [0.00] £895.77 695.77 695,77
Silvano, Mark Josep 1,400.00 1,400.00 . -
Sison, Mara Maris 36,793.04 356,793.04 36,793.04
Solidum, Rogie 1,750.00 1,650.00 100.00 100.00
Tan, King Albert (11,132.08} 695.71 (11,827.79) (11,827.79}
Tejones, Emelina 47,593.04 8,915.20 37,677.84 37,677.84
Tibunsay, Norberta £,980.59 8,980.59 8,980.59




FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB

SCHEDULE 8 - AMCUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)
DECEMBER 31, 2024

[Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

DEDUCTIONS ENDING BALANCE
Amounts
Balance ot 5, Amounts Bolgnce ot end of
N & Designo ;
ame & Designotion of Debtor Beginriing of Period Additions coit Written Off / Current Nat Current Pariod
Reversed
Tutay, Janelyn B,000.00 4,030.00 3,970.00 3.970.00
Unlayao, Maribeth (2,021.08) {2,021.08) (2,021.08)
Virsguerz, Goddess 2,715.00 2,715.00 2,715.00
Vinas, Val Xavier 162,871.73 169,871.73 169,871.73
35,170.15 80,797.32 . 414,611.76 - P 414,611.76

P 466,23893 P



FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB
SCHEDULE E - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG TERM LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES)
DECEMBER 31, 2024
{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Name of Related Party Balance at Beginning | Balance at End of

of Period Period
GLOBAL ESTATE RESORTS INC 55,740,117 58,162,151
GLOBAL-ESTATE PROPERTIES, INC. 57,479,394 57,479,394
FIL ESTATE REALTY CORP 5,773,835 5,773,835
FIL ESTATE URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORP 62,830,827 53,841,681
GOLFORCE INC 5,095,794 4,045,794
FIL-ESTATE MANAGEMENT INC 5,885,357 5,885,357

TOTAL 192,805,324 185,188,212



APPENDIX B

FAIRWAYS & BLUEWATER RESORT GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023

Ratio Formula 2024 2023
Current ratio Total current assets divided by total current 57% 61%
Liabilities
Total current assets P393,405.405
Divide by: Total current liabilities 684,767,378
Current ratio 57%
Acid test ratio Quick assets (total current assets less prepayments 48% 53%
and other current assets) divided by total current
Liabilities
Total current assets P393 405,405
Less: Prepayments and other
current assets 64,648,281
Quick assets 328,757,124
Divide by: Total current liabilities 684.767.378
Acid test ratio 48%
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities divided by total equity 13% 22%
Total liabilities P756.412,149
Divide by: Total equity 3.267.819.,512
Debt to equity ratio 23%
Asset 1o equity ratio Total assets divided by total equity 1.23:1 L.2d]
Total assets P4,024,231,661
Divide by: Total equity 3,267,819.512
Asset to equity ratio 1.23:1
Interest rate coverage Earnings before interest and taxes divided by 4,049% 2,536%
ratio interest expense
Income before income tlax (P72,194,411)
Add: Interest expense 1,739,908
Earnings before interest and taxes (70.,454,413)
Divide by: Interest expense 1,739,998
Interest rate coverage ratio 4,049%




APPENDIX B

Ratio Formula 2024 2023
Return on assets Net income divided by average total assets (total (0.01%) 0.01%
assets beginning plus total assets ending divided by
two)
Total assets, beginning £4,055,017,996
Total assets, ending 4,024,231,661
8,079,249,657
Divide by: 2
Average total assets P4,039,624,829
Net income (P51,861,419)
Divide by: Average total assets 4.039.624,829
Return on assets (0.01%)
Return on equity Net income divided by total equity (0.02%) 0.01%
Met income (P51,861,419)
Divide by: Total equity 3.267,819.512
Return on equity (0.02%)
Net profit (loss) margin | Net income divided by total revenue (9.00%) 4,00%
Met income (P51.,861,419)
Divide by: Total revenue 580,186,361
Met profit margin (9.00%)







